
 
 

 

Date: September 03, 2025 
 
National stock exchange of India Ltd     BSE Limited 
“Exchange Plaza”       Floor 25, P.J. Towers, 
Bandra Kurla Complex      Dalal Street, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051      Mumbai 400 001 
NSE Symbol: EASTSILK      BSE Scrip Code: 590022 
 

 

Dear Sir/Madam,  

SUB.: SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR 2023‐24 ALONG WITH THE NOTICE OF 78TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(“AGM”)  

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, please find 
enclosed herewith the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 along with the Notice of the 
78th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company scheduled to be held on Thursday, 25th 
September, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual 
Means (OAVM).  

The said Notice along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 are being sent 
electronically to the members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent (“RTA”) of the Company i.e., ABS Consultant Private Limited, the 
Company and the Depositories viz. the National Securities Depository Limited and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited.  

The Notice convening the AGM along with the Annual Report has also been uploaded on the 
Company’s website at www.easternsilk.com and the website of National Securities Depository 
Limited at www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

This is for your information and records. 

Thanking you. 

Yours faithfully, 

For Eastern Silk Industries Limited 

 
 
Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 10535137 

 

RAMESH 
CHANDRAGIRI 
REDDAPPA

Digitally signed by RAMESH 
CHANDRAGIRI REDDAPPA 
Date: 2025.09.03 19:50:02 
+05'30'
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MONITORING PROFESSIONAL (RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL TILL 
CIRP PROCESS) 
Mr. Anil Kohli 
Monitoring Professional-Eastern Silk Industries Limited IBBI 
Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00112/2017-18 /10219(Appointed 
vide Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata order dated June 10, 2022). 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
B.K. Shroff & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
23-A, Netaji Subhas Road 
3rd Floor, Room No. 15, 
Kolkata-700001 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to the NCLT order dated January 31, 2024, the 
Monitoring  Committee  in  its  meeting  approved  the  re- 
Constitution of the new Board of Directors) 

COSTAUDITOR 
N.RADHAKRISHNAN&CO.11A,DoverLane,FlatB1/34, Kolkata- 
700029 

Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh, Chairman, Non-Independent Director 
BANKERS 
State Bank of India 

Mr. Sunil Kumar, Executive Director  

Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa, Executive Director 

Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Non-Executive Independent Director 

REGISTRARS & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS 
ABS Consultant Pvt. Ltd.RoomNo.-99,Stephen House,6thFloor 
4, B.B.D. Bag (East). Kolkata - 700 001Phone:2243 
0153,22201043e-mail:absconsultant99@gmail.com 

Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal, Non-Executive Independent 
Director, 

 

Ms. Jyothi Thomas, Non-Executive Independent Director  

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
Mr. Prateek Chhawchharia up to 27.11.2024 

 

Mr. Sunil Kumar w.e.f. 14.02.2025  

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
Rahul Jaiswal resigned from the position of Company Secretary 
and Compliance officer w.e.f close of business hours of 31st 
March. 2024 and Mr. Ravi Kumar appointed as Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer W.e.f. 29th June, 2024. 

 

FACTORIES  

Unit 1 
411, Telugarahalli Road, Anekal, Bangalore – 562 106(The 
operation is yet to start) 
 
Unit 2 
Kammansandra Agrahara Kasaba Hobli, Anekal, Bangalore – 562 
106 

 

Unit 3 
11A, 2nd Cross Industrial Area, Nanjangud, Karnataka – 571 
301(The Operation is yet to start) 

 

Unit 4 (Warehouse) 
Falta Special Economic Zone,24 Parganas (South), West Bengal-
743503 

 



 A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 3 - 2 0 2 4  

3 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Notice … 4 
Directors' Report … 32 
Annexure to Directors' Report … 51 
Independent Auditors' Report … 93 
Balance Sheet … 108 
Statement of Profit & Loss … 109 
Cash Flow Statement … 110 
Notes to Financial Statements … 111 

 
Notes: 

 
The Financial Creditor’s petition to initiate the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(“CIRP”) was admitted by the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Kolkata 
Bench, on 10th June 2022 (“Insolvency Commencement Date”). Mr. Anil Agarwal was 
appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to manage the affairs of the 
Company. 
 
Further, in its first meeting held on 8th July 2022, the members of the Committee of 
Creditors (“CoC”) approved the appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as the Resolution 
Professional in place of the erstwhile Interim Resolution Professional, Mr. Anil 
Agarwal, of Eastern Silk Industries Limited. 
 
The appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli was confirmed as the Resolution Professional vide 
order of the Hon’ble NCLT dated 29th July 2022. The Resolution Professional thereafter 
managed the affairs, business, and assets of the Company. 
 
The Resolution Professional invited expressions of interest and submission of a 
resolution plan in accordance with the provisions of the Code. Out of the various 
resolution plans submitted by the Resolution Applicants, the CoC approved the 
resolution plan submitted by Bauman Dekor Private Limited. 
 
The Resolution Professional submitted the CoC-approved plan to the NCLT for its 
approval, and the NCLT, Kolkata Bench, approved the resolution plan submitted by 
Bauman Dekor Private Limited on 31st January 2024 (“IBC/NCLT Order”). 
 
Pursuant to the NCLT Order, a new Board was constituted (“Reconstituted Board” or 
“Board”), and a new management was put in place. 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
Notice is hereby given that the 78th Annual General Meeting of the member of Eastern Silk Industries 
Limited will be held on Thursday, 25th day of September, 2025, at 11.00 A.M. through video 
conferencing (“VC”)/ other Audio Visual means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

ITEM NO 1. To receive, consider and adopt audited financial statements for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024 and together with the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this 
regard, pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be 
and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

ITEM NO 2. TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. DEEPAK KUMAR GUPTA (DIN: 
08578380), AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force), Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta(DIN: 08578380), who was appointed as an Additional Director 
(Non-executive Independent) of the Company with effect from 3rd January , 2025 by Monitoring 
Committee of the company in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025 in terms of approved resolution 
plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 31st January, 
2024, who meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules 
framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, and who has submitted a 
declaration to that effect and is eligible for appointment as director, in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member under the provisions of Section 160 of the Act, proposing 
his candidature for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of 
the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years 
from 3rd January, 2025. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the appointment of Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta (DIN: 08578380), who was 
appointed as an Additional Director (Non-executive Independent) of the Company with effect from 11th 
March, 2024 by Monitoring Committee of the company in its meeting held on 4th March, 2024, in terms 
of approved resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its 
order dated 31st January, 2024, who held office up to the due date of 78th Annual General Meeting i.e. 
31st December, 2024, who met the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act 
and the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing 
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Regulations, and who has submitted a declaration to that effect, be and is hereby ratified by the 
members of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
do all such acts, deeds and things as they may, in their absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 
expedient and to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and 
delegate all or any of their powers herein conferred to any Committee of Director(s) to give effect to the 
above resolution.” 

ITEM NO 3. TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. PRAVEEN KUMAR AGARWAL 
(DIN:06992675), AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 
force), Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 06992675), who was appointed as an Additional Director 
(Non-executive Independent) of the Company with effect from 3rd January , 2025 by Monitoring 
Committee of the company in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025 in terms of approved resolution 
plan approved by the Hon’ble  National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 31st 
January, 2024, who meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and 
the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, and who has submitted 
a declaration to that effect and is eligible for appointment as director, in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member under the provisions of Section 160 of the Act, proposing 
his candidature for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of 
the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years 
from 3rd January, 2025. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the appointment of Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 06992675), who 
was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-executive Independent) of the Company with effect from 
11th March, 2024 by Monitoring Committee of the company in its meeting held on 4th March, 2024, in 
terms of approved resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata 
vide its order dated 31st January, 2024, who held office up to the due date of 78th Annual General 
Meeting i.e. 31st December, 2024, who met the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) 
of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, and who 
has submitted a declaration to that effect, be and is hereby ratified by the members of the Company. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
do all such acts, deeds and things as they may, in their absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 
expedient and to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and 
delegate all or any of their powers herein conferred to any Committee of Director(s) to give effect to the 
above resolution.” 
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ITEM NO 4. TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MS. JYOTHI THOMAS (DIN:03502492),AS AN 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force), Ms. Jyothi Thomas (DIN: 03502492), who was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-
executive Independent) of the Company with effect from 3rd January , 2025 by Monitoring Committee 
of the company in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025 in terms of approved resolution plan approved 
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 31st January, 2024, who 
meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules framed 
thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, and who has submitted a declaration to 
that effect and is eligible for appointment as director, in respect of whom the Company has received a 
notice in writing from a member under the provisions of Section 160 of the Act, proposing her 
candidature for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from 
3rd January, 2025. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the appointment of Ms. Jyothi Thomas (DIN: 03502492), who was 
appointed as an Additional Director (Non-executive Independent) of the Company with effect from 11th 
March, 2024 by Monitoring Committee of the company in its meeting held on 4th March, 2024, in terms 
of approved resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its 
order dated 31st January 31, 2024, who held office up to the due date of 78th Annual General Meeting 
i.e. 31st December, 2024, who met the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the 
Act and the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, and who has 
submitted a declaration to that effect, be and is hereby ratified by the members of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
do all such acts, deeds and things as they may, in their absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 
expedient and to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and 
delegate all or any of their powers herein conferred to any Committee of Director(s) to give effect to the 
above resolution.” 

ITEM NO 5. TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. AJAY BIKRAM SINGH (DIN:03096101) AS 
A DIRECTOR 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
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being in force), Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh (DIN:03096101) who was appointed as an Additional Director 
(Non-executive –Non Independent director ) of the Company with effect from 3rd January, 2025 by 
Monitoring Committee of the company in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025 in terms of approved 
resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 
31st January, 2024, is eligible for appointment as director, and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a notice in writing from a member under the provisions of Section 160 of the Act, proposing 
his candidature for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the company, 
liable to retire by rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
do all such acts, deeds and things as they may, in their absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 
expedient and to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and 
delegate all or any of their powers herein conferred to any Committee of Director(s) to give effect to the 
above resolution.” 

 
 

ITEM NO. 6: TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. SUNIL KUMAR DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY AND WHOLE–TIME DIRECTOR (DIN: 09424480)OF THE COMPANY 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Sunil 
Kumar (DIN: 09424480) who was appointed as an Additional Director (Executive –Non Independent 
director ) of the Company with effect from 3rd January, 2025 by Monitoring Committee of the company 
in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025 in terms of approved resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 31st January, 2024, is eligible for 
appointment as director, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
member under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature 
for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the company, liable to retire by 
rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197 and 198 read with 
Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the 
applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re- enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Sunil Kumar (DIN: 09424480) who was appointed as Whole-time Director (Executive – Non 
Independent director ) of the Company with effect from 3rd January, 2025 by Monitoring Committee of 
the company in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025 in terms of approved resolution plan approved 
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 31st January, 2024, be and 
is hereby appointed as a Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 3rd January, 
2025, to hold office from 3rd January, 2025 to 2nd March , 2028, liable to retire by rotation, without any 
remuneration. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the appointment of Mr. Sunil Kumar (DIN: 09424480), who was 
appointed as Whole-time Director (Executive- Non Independent) of the Company with effect from 11th 
March, 2024 by Monitoring Committee of the company in its meeting held on 4th March, 2024, in terms 
of approved resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its 
order dated 31st January , 2024, who held office up to the due date of 78th Annual General Meeting i.e. 
31st December, 2024, be and is hereby ratified by the members of the Company. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Committee of the Board, be and is 
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or 
expedient in connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.” 

ITEM NO. 7: TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. RAMESH CHANDRAGIRI REDDAPPA 
(DIN:10535137)AS DIRECTOR AND WHOLE–TIME DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Ramesh 
Chandragiri Reddappa (DIN: 10535137) who was appointed as an Additional Director (Executive –Non 
Independent director ) of the Company with effect from 3rd January, 2025 by Monitoring Committee of 
the Company in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025 in terms of approved resolution plan approved 
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 31st January, 2024, is 
eligible for appointment as director, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 
writing from a member under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his 
candidature for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the company, liable 
to retire by rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197 and 198 read with 
Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the 
applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re- enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa (DIN: 10535137), who was appointed as Whole-time Director 
(Executive –Non Independent director ) of the Company with effect from 3rd January, 2025 by Monitoring 
Committee of the company in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025 in terms of approved resolution 
plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 31st January, 
2024, be and is hereby appointed as a Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 
3rd January, 2025, to hold office from 3rd January, 2025 to 2nd March , 2028, liable to retire by rotation, 
without any remuneration. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the appointment of Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa (DIN: 
10535137), who was appointed as Whole-time Director (Executive- Non Independent) of the Company 
with effect from 11th March, 2024 by Monitoring Committee of the Company in its meeting held on 4th 
March, 2024, in terms of approved resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, Kolkata vide its order dated 31st January , 2024, who held office up to the 
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due date of 78th Annual General Meeting i.e. 31st December, 2024, be and is hereby ratified by the 
members of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Committee of the Board, be and is 
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or 
expedient in connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.” 

ITEM NO. 8 RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION TO COST AUDITORS FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the remuneration payable 
to M/s. N. Radhakrishnan & Co, Cost Accountant, Cost Accountants, appointed by the Board of 
Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct 
the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, amounting 
to ◻ 25,000/-plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection 
with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Committee of the Board, be and is 
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or 
expedient in connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.” 

 

Registered Office: 
19, R. N. Mukherjee Road 
Kolkata – 700 001 
Date: 30.08.2025 
Place: New Delhi 

By order of the Board 
Sd/- 
Ravi Kumar 
Company Secretary& Compliance Officer 

CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554 
Email: investors@easternsilk.com 
Registered Office: 
19, R. N. Mukherjee Road  
Email:investors@easternsilk.com 
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STATEMENT IN PURSUANCE OF SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
Statement with respect to items under Special Business covered in the Notice of Annual General 
Meeting are given below 

 
ITEM NO.2, 3, 4, 5, 6 AND 7 

 
Eastern Silk Industries Limited ("Company") was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
("CIRP") and subsequently the resolution plan ("Resolution Plan") submitted by the Mr. Ajay Bikram 
Singh along with Baumann Dekor Private Limited ("Successful Resolution Applicant") was approved by 
the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench and Vide Order dated 31st January, 2024. As per 
the terms of the approved Resolution Plan, a monitoring committee ("Monitoring Committee") has been 
constituted, to oversee the implementation of the resolution plan. Monitoring committee, In term of 
approved resolution plan, in its meeting held on 4th March, 2024 had approved the appointment of Mr. 
Deepak Kumar Gupta, Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal and Ms. Jyothi Thomas, as Additional Directors 
(Non-executive Independent Directors), Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh, as Additional Director (Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director and Mr. Sunil Kumar and Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa as Additional 
Directors and Whole-time Directors (Executive Director-Non Independent Directors) w.e.f. 11th March, 
2024 to hold the office up to the date of 78th Annual General Meeting or due date i.e. 31st December, 
2024 (after extension of 3 months), whichever is earlier. However, due to some unavoidable reasons, 
i.e. pendency of in principal approval for the listing of equity shares of the Company, with National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited, the Company could not convene 78th Annual General Meeting up to the due 
date as aforesaid. Consequently, all the Directors appointed as aforesaid by the Monitoring 
Committee, got vacated. 

Thereafter, Monitoring Committee in its meeting held on 3rd January, 2025, approved the appointment 
of Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal and Ms. Jyothi Thomas, as Additional 
Directors (Non-executive Independent Directors), Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh, as Additional Director (Non- 
Executive Non-Independent Director and Mr. Sunil Kumar and Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa 
as Additional Directors and Whole-time Directors (Executive Director-Non Independent Directors) 
w.e.f. 3rd January, 2025. 

The Company has received declaration from Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Praveen Kumar Agarwal, and 
Ms. Jyothi Thomas confirming that they meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 („Listing Regulations‟). In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, Mr. 
Deepak Kumar Gupta, Praveen Kumar Agarwal, and Ms. Jyothi Thomas, have confirmed that they are 
not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could 
impair or impact his ability to discharge his duties. 

 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Praveen Kumar Agarwal, and Ms. Jyothi Thomas, 
fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations for appointment as an Independent 
Director and that they are independent of the Management. 

In terms of the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of Act and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and Regulation 25(2) (A) of the Listing Regulations, the appointment of Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, 
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Praveen Kumar Agarwal, and Ms. Jyothi Thomas, as Independent Directors for a period of 5 years 
w.e.f. 3rd January, 2025 and ratification of their term as Independent Directors for the period 11th March, 
2024 to 31st December, 2024, requires the approval of the members by way of Special Resolutions. 

Further, in terms of the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Act and Regulation 17 of the Listing 
Regulations, the appointment of Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh, Mr. Sunil Kumar and Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri 
Reddappa, as Directors requires the approval of the members of the Company by way of an Ordinary 
Resolutions. Further, in terms of the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act, the 
appointment of , Mr. Sunil Kumar and Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa, as Whole time Directors for 
a period of 3 years w.e.f. 3rd January, 2025 and ratification of their appointment as Whole time Directors 
for the period 11th March, 2024 to 31st December, 2024, requires the approval of the members by way 
of Ordinary Resolutions. 

 
Given their background, experience and expertise, the Board is of the opinion that continued association 
of Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Praveen Kumar Agarwal, and Ms. Jyothi Thomas, as independent 
directors, Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh, as Non-Executive Director and Mr. Sunil Kumar and Mr. Ramesh 
Chandragiri Reddappa, as Whole time Directors would be of immense benefit to the Company and it 
is, therefore, desirable to appoint them. 
 
The information as required under the Regulation 36 of Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 
(SS 2) on General Meetings, of Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Praveen Kumar Agarwal, Ms. Jyothi Thomas, 
Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh, Mr. Sunil Kumar and Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa is provided in 
Annexure “A" to the Notice. 

Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Praveen Kumar Agarwal, Ms. Jyothi Thomas, Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh, Mr. 
Sunil Kumar and Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa and their relative, in the resolution with regard to 
his/her appointment, are interested. 

 
 

The Board recommends the Special resolution, as set out at item No. 2, 3, 4 and Ordinary Resolutions 
5, 6 and 7 of accompanying Notice, for approval by the Members 

 

 
ITEM NO. 8 

 
The Hon’ble National Company Law Board (“NCLT”), Kolkata Bench, vide order dated June 10, 2022 
has admitted the reference for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and subsequently Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide order 
dated 31st January, 2024 had approved the Resolution Plan submitted by the Successful Resolution 
Applicant and prior to the approval company was managed by the Resolution Professional under the 
supervision of the Committee of Creditor. 
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In the financial year 2023-24, due to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company had not 
approved the appointment of the Cost auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. 

In view of the above, the members of the board in their meeting held on 16th May, 2024, upon the 
recommendation of the audit committee, approved the re-appointment of M/s. N. Radhakrishnan & Co., 
as Cost auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24, subject to ratification by the shareholders remuneration 
to be payable to him as Cost auditor of the company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the for 
Financial Year 2023-24. 

 
In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members of the Company are required to ratify the 
remuneration of the Cost Auditors. 

 
Accordingly, approval of the Members is being sought for ratification of remuneration of M/s. N. 
Radhakrishnan & Co. for the cost audit conducted for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

NONE of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 

 
The Board recommends the Ordinary resolution, as set out at 8 of accompanying Notice, for approval 
by the Members. 
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Annexure-A 

Disclosure relating to Directors pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standards on General 
Meetings: 

 

 
Name of the Director Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal 

DIN 08578380 06992675 

Date of Birth & Age 26th April 1962, 63 Years 19th October, 1954, 70 Years 

Brief resume and nature of their 
expertise in specific functional 
areas Qualification and 
Experience. 

Mr. Deepak Gupta is a Chartered 
Accountant and having an 
experience of over 40 years in 
financial management. 

Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal is an 
Architect having a wide experience 
in project management of over 40 
years. 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment or re-appointment 
along with details of 
remuneration sought to be paid. 

As mentioned in the Explanatory 
Statement. 

As mentioned in the Explanatory 
Statement. 

The remuneration last drawn by 
such person 

NIL NIL 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board 

11th March, 2024 11th March, 2024 

Shareholding in the Company as 
on 31.03.2024 

NIL NIL 

Disclosure of Relationship 
between Directors inter-se 

NONE NONE 

No. of Meetings of Board 
attended during the F.Y 2023-24 

1 1 

Names of the listed Companies in 
which person holds Directorship 

NONE, Except Eastern Silk 
Industries Limited 

NONE, Except Eastern Silk 
Industries Limited 

Other directorship Sanwariya Packaging Private 
Limited 

Ayavazhi Technologies Private 
Limited 

LSC Marketing India Private 
Limited 

NONE 
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Names of listed Companies in 
which person ceased to be a 
Director in past three years 

N.A N.A 

Skills and capabilities required for 
the role of Independent Director and 
the manner in which the proposed 
person meets such requirements 

The Board noted that Mr. Deepak 
Kumar Gupta skills, background and 
experience are aligned to the role 
and capabilities identified by the 
NRC and that he is eligible for 
appointment as an Independent 
Director. 

The Board noted that Mr. Praveen 
Kumar Agarwal‟ skills, background 
and experience are aligned to the 
role and capabilities identified by 
the NRC and that he is eligible for 
appointment as an Independent 
Director. 

 
Disclosure relating to Directors pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standards on General 
Meetings: 

 

 
Name of the Director Ms. Jyothi Thomas Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh 

DIN 03502492 03096101 

Date of Birth & Age 21st April, 1966, 59 Years 04th November,1966 

Brief resume and nature of their 
expertise in specific functional 
areas Qualification and 
Experience. 

Mrs. Jyothi Thomas is an architect 
having a wide experience in project 
management of over 35 years. 

Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh is an 
Architect, MBA & professional 
lawyer with over 30 years of 
experience. 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment or re-appointment 
along with details of 
remuneration sought to be paid. 

As mentioned in the Explanatory 
Statement. 

As mentioned in the Explanatory 
Statement. 

The remuneration last drawn by 
such person 

NIL NIL 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board 

11th March, 2024 11th March, 2024 

Shareholding in the Company as 
on 31.03.2024 

NIL NIL 

Disclosure of Relationship 
between Directors inter-se 

NONE NONE 

No. of Meetings of Board 
attended during the F.Y 2023-24 

1 1 

Names of the listed Companies 
in which person holds 

NONE, Except Eastern Silk NONE, Except Eastern Silk 
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Directorship Industries Limited Industries Limited 

Other directorship NONE Baumann Dekor Private Limited 

Dorato Infrastructure Private 
Limited 

VFM Infraventures Private Limited 

Consilio Resources Private Limited. 

Names of listed Companies in 
which person ceased to be a 
Director in past three years 

N.A N.A 

Skills and capabilities required for 
the role of Independent Director and 
the manner in which the proposed 
person meets such requirements 

The Board noted that Ms. Jyothi 
Thomas skills, background and 
experience are aligned to the role 
and capabilities identified by the 
NRC and that he is eligible for 
appointment as an Independent 
Director. 

N.A 

 
Disclosure relating to Directors pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standards on General 
Meetings: 

 

 
Name of the Director Mr. Sunil Kumar Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa 

DIN 09424480 10535137 

Date of Birth & Age 25th November, 1991, 33 Years 15th May, 1975, 50 Years 

Brief resume and nature of their 
expertise in specific functional 
areas Qualification and 
Experience. 

Mr. Sunil Kumar is a business 
professional with MBA qualification. 
He has 12 years of experience in 
managing the business. 

Mr. Ramesh is a textile professional 
with over 30 years of experience. 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment or re-appointment 
along with details of 
remuneration sought to be paid. 

As mentioned in the Explanatory 
Statement. 

As mentioned in the Explanatory 
Statement. 

The remuneration last drawn by 
such person 

NIL NIL 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board 

11th March, 2024 11th March, 2024 
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Shareholding in the Company as 
on 31.03.2024 

NIL NIL 

Disclosure of Relationship 
between Directors inter-se 

NONE NONE 

No. of Meetings of Board 
attended during the F.Y 2023-24 

1 1 

Names of the listed Companies in 
which person holds Directorship 

NONE, Except Eastern Silk 
Industries Limited 

NONE, Except Eastern Silk 
Industries Limited 

Other directorship Baumann Dekor Private Limited 

Dorato Infrastructure Private 
Limited 

VFM Infraventures Private Limited 

Consilio Resources Private Limited. 

NONE 

Names of listed Companies in 
which person ceased to be a 
Director in past three years 

N.A N.A 

Skills and capabilities required for 
the role of Independent Director and 
the manner in which the proposed 
person meets such requirements 

N.A N.A 
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NOTES: 

 
1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of section 102 of The Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”), in respect of the businesses under Item Nos. 2 to 8 of the Notice is annexed 
hereto. The Board of Directors (“the Board”) have considered and decided to include Item Nos. 
2 to 8 given above in the 78th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), as they are unavoidable in 
nature. Further, the relevant details with respect to Item Nos. 2, to 7 pursuant to regulation 36(3) 
of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“the ICSI”), in 
respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed. 

 
2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, 

May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021, May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022, 
September 25, 2023, and September 19, 2024 (“MCA Circulars for General Meetings”) and The 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 
15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023, October 7, 2023, and October 3, 2024 (“SEBI 
Circulars for General Meetings”) (MCA Circulars for General Meetings and SEBI Circulars for 
General Meeting are collectively referred to as “the MCA and SEBI Circulars”), permitted the 
holding of the general meetings through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the 
members at a common venue till September 30, 2025. In compliance with the provisions of the 
Act, the Listing Regulations, the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being 
held through VC / OAVM. 

3. As the AGM is being held pursuant to MCA Circulars for General Meetings through VC / 
OAVM, the facility to appoint proxy will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy 
Form and the Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, a Body 
Corporate is entitled to appoint authorised representative to attend the AGM through VC 
/ OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
Further, pursuant to sections 112 and 113 of the Act, representatives of the members such as 
the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through 
VC / OAVM and cast their vote through e-voting. As the AGM will be held through VC 
/ OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice. 

 
 

4. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate ABS Consultant Private 
Limited. the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company („the RTA‟) at STEPHEN HOUSE” 
Room No. 99, 6th Floor, 4B.B.D Bag (East), Kolkata-700001, changes, if any, in their names, 
registered address along with pin code number, e-mail address, telephone / mobile number, 
Permanent Account Number („PAN‟), mandates, nominations, power of attorneys, bank details 
such as name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, 9 digit MICR code, 11 
digit IFSC, etc. and relevant evidences. Members holding shares in electronic mode shall 
update such details with their respective DP. 

As per the provisions of section 72 of the Act, the facility of making nomination is available for 
the members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered 
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their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. Members 
are requested to submit the said details to the DP in case the shares are held by them in demat 
mode and to the Company / RTA, in case the shares are held in physical mode. 

 
5. In compliance with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM of the Company, inter- alia, 

indicating the process and manner of e-voting and the Annual Report 2023-2024 is being sent 
only through electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with 
the Company / RTA / DP. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Company, 
i.e.  https://easternsilk.com/, as well as from the website of the Stock Exchange where the 
Company is listed, i.e., NSE Limited at www.nseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also available 
on the website of National Securities Depository Limited („NSDL‟) (agency for providing the 
remote e-voting facility and e-voting during the AGM) i.e., www.evoting.nsdl.com. The 
Company shall send a letter providing the web-link, including the exact path, where complete 
details of the Annual Report are available to those members who have not registered their email 
IDs. The Company shall send the hard copy of the Annual Report to those members who 
request the same. 

 
The Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 
September 19, 2025 to September 25, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM. 

6. In order to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio 
management, members holding shares in physical mode are requested to demat their holdings 
at the earliest. 

7. Mandatory furnishing of KYC details and nominations by holders of physical securities: 
 

SEBI, vide its circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_ RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 
3, 2021, has prescribed certain mandatory provisions with regard to “Common and Simplified 
Norms for processing investor request by RTAs and norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and 
Nomination”, where the shares are held in physical mode. Said SEBI circular prescribes 
following norms: 

 
i. Common and simplified norms for processing any service request from the holder, 

pertaining to the captioned items, by the RTAs. 
ii. Electronic interface for processing investor’s queries, complaints and service 

requests. 
iii. Mandatory furnishing of PAN, KYC details and Nomination by holders of physical 

securities. 
iv. Freezing of folios without valid PAN, KYC details and Nomination and 
v. Compulsory linking of PAN and Aadhaar by all holders of physical securities. 

Members of the Company holding shares in physical mode shall provide the following 
documents / details to the RTA of the Company: 

i. PAN. 
ii. Nomination (for all eligible folios) in Form No. SH-13 or submit declaration to “Opt- 

Out” in Form No. ISR-3. 
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Note: Any cancellation or change in nomination shall be provided in Form No. SH-14. 

iii. Contact details including postal address with pin code, mobile number, e-mail 
address. 

iv. Bank account details including bank name and branch, bank account number and 
IFSC. 

v. Specimen signature. 
 

Please provide the above documents / details to the RTA of the Company along with other 
basic details like name of the member, folio number, certificate number and distinctive numbers. 

As per the said SEBI circular, the Company has uploaded the following documents (along with 
the SEBI circular) on the website of the Company: 

 
i. Form No. ISR-1-request for registering PAN, KYC details or changes / updation 

thereof. 
ii. Form No. ISR-2-confirmation of signature of securities holder by the Banker. 
iii. Form No. ISR-3-declaration form for opting-out of nomination by holders of physical 

securities in listed companies. 
iv. Form No. SH-13-nomination form. 
v. Form No. SH-14-cancellation or variation of nomination. 

Further, the contact details of the Company and the RTA are also available on the website of 
the Company. 

 
SEBI has issued a circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/PoD-1/ CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023 
(subsumed as part of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD1/P/ CIR/2024/37 
dated May 7, 2024) on „Common and simplified norms for processing investor’s service request 
by RTAs and norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and Nomination which is applicable from 
April 1, 2023. The norms / procedural requirements for processing service requests of investors 
are provided in the said SEBI Circular. 

The link to view the said SEBI circular dated November 3, 2021 along with the various forms 
and March 16, 2023 is available on the Company website at: www.easternsilk.com  

 
SEBI vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023 and 
SEBI/HO/OIAE/ OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023, read with Master Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/ OIAE/OIAE_IAD1/P/CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on August 
11, 2023), has established a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR Portal”) for 
resolution of disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market. Pursuant to above-mentioned 
circulars, post exhausting the option to resolve their grievances with the RTA / Company directly 
and through existing SCORES platform, the members can initiate dispute resolution through 
the ODR Portal (https://smartodr.in/login). 

8. Thursday, September 18, 2025 has been fixed as “Cut-off Date‟ for determining Members 
entitled to facility of voting by remote e-voting and for e-voting at said AGM following Regulation 
44 of the Listing Regulations. 
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9. Equity Shares of the Company are available for dematerialization both with NSDL and Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited („CDSL‟).  

10. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify 
the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. 
Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic 
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and 
holdings should be verified. 

 
11. In terms of circulars issued by the SEBI, it is now mandatory to furnish a copy of Permanent 

Account Number Card (PAN Card) by every participant in securities market. Members holding 
shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form can submit their PAN details to the RTA of the Company. 

 
12. Members who have not registered their e-mail address so far are requested to register their e- 

mail address for receiving all communications including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. 
from the Company electronically. The e-mail address can be registered with the DP in case the 
shares are held in electronic mode and with the RTA in case the shares are held in physical 
mode. 

 
13. Members desiring any relevant information on the Audited Financial Statements or any matter 

to be placed at the AGM are requested to write to the Company at least 7 (seven) days in 
advance of the date of AGM through e-mail on investors@easternsilk.com. The same will be 
replied by the Company suitably. 

14. The Register of Directors‟ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors 
are interested under Section 189 of the Act and all other documents referred to in this Notice 
will be available for inspection in electronic mode. 

 
15. The copies of the documents will also be available for electronic inspection during normal 

business hours on working days from the date of circulation of the Notice up to the date of AGM. 
For any communication, members may also send requests to the Company‟s investor e-mail id 
investors@easternsilk.com. 

 
16. Members are requested to quote Folio No. or Client ID and DP ID Nos. in all communications 

with the Company. 

17. E-voting (voting through electronic means): 
 

i. The businesses as set out in the Notice may be transacted through electronic voting 
system. In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Act read with The 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, standards 7 and 8 of the 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations and 
pursuant to the MCA Circulars for General Meetings and the SEBI Circulars for General 
Meetings, the Company is pleased to offer the facility of voting through electronic means, 
to all its members to enable them to cast their votes electronically. The Company has 
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made necessary arrangements with NSDL to facilitate the members to cast their votes 
from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”). The facility for voting shall 
be made available during the AGM through electronic voting and the members participating 
in the AGM who have not cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their 
right during the AGM. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as 
well as venue e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 
As the Company is providing the facility of remote e-voting to the members, there shall be 
no voting by show of hands at the AGM in terms of provisions of section 107 of the Act. 

ii. Pursuant to MCA and SEBI Circulars, physical attendance of the members at the AGM 
venue is not required and AGM can be held through VC / OAVM. The members can join 
the AGM through VC / OAVM mode 15 (fifteen) minutes before the scheduled time of the 
AGM and within 15 (fifteen) minutes after the scheduled time of the commencement of the 
AGM by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 
AGM through VC / OAVM will be made available to atleast 1,000 (one thousand) members 
on first come first served basis. This will be in addition to large members (members holding 
2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders‟ Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to 
attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
iii. The attendance of the members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM will be counted 

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the Act. 

iv. A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members / List of Beneficial Owners 
maintained by the Depositories as on Thursday, September 18, 2025, being the cut-off 
date shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or e-voting during the AGM. 
Persons who are not members as on the cut-off date, but have received this Notice, should 
treat receipt of this Notice for information purpose only. 

 
The members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to AGM may also attend 
the AGM, but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. 

 
The members whose names appear in the Register of Members / List of Beneficial Owners 
as on Thursday, September 18, 2025, are entitled to vote on the resolutions set forth in 
the Notice. Eligible members who have acquired shares after sending the Notice 
electronically and holding shares as on the cut-off date may approach the Company for 
seeking assistance for issuance of the User Id and Password for exercising their right to 
vote by electronic means. 

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change 
it subsequently or cast the vote again. 
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18. The Company has appointed Mr. Sumit Grover , Proprietor of M/S. Sumit Grover & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries (Peer Review Certificate No. 6340/2024), to act as the 
Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

19. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER: - 

 
The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, September 22, 2025, at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and 
ends on Wednesday, September 24, 2025, at 05:00 P.M. (IST). The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Thursday, 
September 18, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall 
be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the 
cut-off date, being Thursday, September 18, 2025. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A)  Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode 

 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 
Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You 
will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 
Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 
registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
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 https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under „IDeAS‟ section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e- 
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
„Shareholder/Member‟ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience. 
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Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 

through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL 

 website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System 
 Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & 
 password. 
 2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
 e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
 progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
 the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
 e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e- 
 Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
 e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
 service providers‟ website directly. 
 3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
 available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 
 New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

 
4.  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

 providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link 
 available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
 authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 
 as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
 user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
 progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
 Service Providers. 

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
Shareholders (holding account through your Depository Participant registered with 
securities in demat NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to 
mode) login through see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 
their depository to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
participants wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or 

 e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e- 
 Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e- 
 Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

 
 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or 
call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800-21-09911 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 

is available under „Shareholder/Member‟ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

 Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is:  

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 
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 c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form. 
EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 
the „initial password‟ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
„initial password‟, you need to enter the „initial password‟ and the system will 
force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your „initial password‟? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your „initial password‟ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open 
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID 
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The 
.pdf file contains your „User ID‟ and your „initial password‟. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 
6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 

the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
 
2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cssumitgrover@gmail.comwith a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can 
also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Pritam Dutta, 
Assistant Manager at pritamd@nsdl.com / evoting@nsdl.com 

4. A member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through remote e-voting or during the 
AGM. If a member cast votes by both modes, then voting done through remote e-voting shall 
prevail. 

5. The Company has appointed Mr. Sumit Grover , Proprietor of M/S. Sumit Grover & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 11050 COP No.21767 to act as the 
Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner. 

6. The Scrutinizer will collate the votes cast at the AGM and votes downloaded from the e-voting 
system and make, within two working days from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
Scrutinizer‟s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a 
person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same. 

 
7. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman after completion of the scrutiny. The result 

of the voting on the resolutions at the AGM shall be announced by the Chairman or any other 
person authorised by him immediately after the results are declared. 

8. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer‟s Report, will be posted on the website of the 
Company https://easternsilk.com and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.comand will 
be displayed on the Notice Board of the Company at its registered office immediately after the 
declaration of the results by the Chairman or any other person authorised by him and 
communicated to the Stock Exchange. 

9. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolution(s) set out in the Notice shall be 
deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM. 
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions 
set out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
investors@easternsilk.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 
16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN 
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) to investors@easternsilk.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:- 

 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above 

for remote e-voting. 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 

and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 
for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

Instructions for members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM & e-voting during AGM are as 
under: 

 
1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the 

instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 



 A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 3 - 2 0 2 4  

30 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
4. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 

e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to 
NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under 
“Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link 
placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User 
ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

 
5. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / iPads for better experience. 

 
6. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

7. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
8. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 

register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 (seven) days 
prior to the meeting, mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 
and mobile number at investors@easternsilk.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak 
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 (seven) days prior to 
the meeting, mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at investors@easternsilk.com. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably 
by email. 

 
9. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 

express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

10. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 
11. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if 

the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the 
votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the 
meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 
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Contact Details: 

 
Company Mr. Ravi Kumar 

Eastern Silk Industries Limited 
Registered Office: 
19 R N Mukherjee Rd, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700001 
CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554 
E-mail: cs@easternsilk.com 

Registrar and Transfer Agent ABS Consultant Private Limited, the Registrar and Transfer 
Agent of the Company („the RTA‟) at STEPHEN HOUSE” 
Room No. 99, 6th Floor, 4B.B.D Bag (East), Kolkata-700001 
Contact Person: Mr. Rajiv Goel 
E-mail: absconsultant99@gmail.com 

e-Voting Agency National Securities Depository Limited 
E-mail: evoting@nsdl.co.in 
Phone: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Scrutinizer Mr. Sumit Grover 
Practicing Company Secretary 
E-mail: cssumitgrover@gmail.com 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 
 

To 

The Members 

Eastern Silk Industries Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Company”). 

The Newly Constituted Board of Directors present the Seventy Eighth Annual Report and the 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
INITIATION OF CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP) AND APPROVAL 
OF THE RESOLUTION PLAN: 

The Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority, i.e., National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, admitted the 
Company Petition i.e. C.P. No. (IB) No.588/KB/2020 on 10.06.2022, filed by the Financial Creditor, 
Export-Import Bank of India initiating Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under 
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as “Code”) in the matter of M/s. Eastern 
Silk Industries Ltd. The Adjudicating Authority appointed Mr. Anil Agarwal as Interim Resolution 
Professional (IRP) vide its said order dated 10.06.2022. 

The Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) in its first meeting held on 08.07.2022 approved the appointment 
of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional (“RP”). Thereupon, the CoC filed before Hon’ble NCLT an 
application for the appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional in the captioned matter. 
Subsequently, the Hon’ble NCLT allowed the application and appointed Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution 
Professional in this matter vide its Order dated 29.07.2022 (copy of the same was received on 
04.08.2022). 

The CIRP is being carried out by the Resolution Professional as per the provisions of the Code and 
during CIRP, the resolution plan, as submitted by Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh through Baumann Dekor 
Private Limited (SRA-Successful Resolution Applicant), in terms of the applicable provisions of the 
Code, was approved by the CoC in its 11th Meeting held on March 03, 2023. 

After approval of the resolution plan from the CoC, the Resolution Professional filed the CoC approved 
Resolution Plan with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench on 09.03.2023 and the 
same was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 
31.01.2024. 

Pursuant to the approval of the plan and for the purpose of its implementation, a monitoring committee 
was constituted in terms of the approved Resolution Plan, and post constitution, the monitoring 
committee, in terms of the approved Resolution Plan, reconstituted the Board of the Company, thereby 
appointing a new Board of Directors of the Company along with the removal/vacation of the existing 
Board of Directors. 
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In accordance with the provisions of the Code and the NCLT order, the approved resolution plan is 
binding on the Company and its employees, members, creditors, guarantors and other stakeholders 
involved. 

Members may kindly note that the Directors of the Reconstituted Board (“Directors”) were not in office 
for the majority of the period to which this report primarily pertains. During the CIRP Process (i.e. 
between 10th June 2022 to 31st January 2024), the RP was entrusted with the management of the affairs 
of the Company. Prior to the Insolvency Commencement Date, the erstwhile Board of Directors had the 
oversight on the management of the affairs of the Company. The Reconstituted Board is submitting this 
report in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules and regulations framed 
there under (“Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). The Reconstituted Board is not to be 
considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on financial and 
operational health of the Company and performance of the management for the period prior to the 
Reconstruction of the Board. 

Pursuant to the NCLT Order, a New Board was first constituted on March 11, 2024 (“Reconstituted 
Board” or “Board”) and a new management was put in place. Details about the change in management 
is provided in the relevant section of this report. 

Members are requested to read this report in light of the fact as stated above. 

During the period through 1st April 2023 to 10h March 2024: 

(a) the management of the affairs of the company vested with the Resolution Professional. 

(b) the powers of the then Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended and were exercised 
by the Resolution Professional. 

(c) the Resolution Professional was responsible for complying with the requirements under any law for 
the time being in force. 

 
During the period through 11th March 2024 to 31st March 2024 and thereafter: 

New Board was reconstituted on 11th March 2024 with the following new directors, namely, Mr. Ajay 
Bikram Singh, Mr. Sunil Kumar, Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa, Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Mr. 
Praveen Kumar Agarwal and Mrs. Jyothi Thomas 

 
It is pertinent to mention here that as at the end of the period under review i.e. March 31, 2024, the 
Resolution Plan, as approved by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 31.01.2024, 
was under implementation in supervision of the Monitoring Committee. 
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1. FINANCIAL RESULTS/HIGHLIGHTS 

Highlights of Financial Results for the year are as under: 
 

( in Lacs)
Particulars Financial year ended

March 31, 2024
Financial Year ended

March 31, 2023
Total Income 2,033.58 3,946.45
Profit/(Loss) before depreciation/Exceptional 
Items and taxation (889.87) (1,147.37)

Less/Add: Depreciation 296.55 296.05
Profit/(Loss) for the year before taxation (1,186.42) (1,443.42)
Add/ (Less): Provision for Current/Earlier Year 
Taxation 44.00 0.01

Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,230.42) (1,443.43)
Add: Balance b/f Of Retained Earnings of 
Previous Years (21,995.24) (20,551.81)

Balance to be Carried Forward to the Next 
Year (23,225.67) (21,995.24)

 
2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

Highlights of performance during the financial year 2023-24 are: 

Total Revenue from Operation of the Company is . 1,891.98 Lacs as against . 3,801.29 Lacs in the previous year. 

Operating Profit / (Loss) is  (1,186.42) Lacs as against  (1,443.42) Lacs in the previous year. 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation is (1,186.42) Lacs for the year as against the profit/ (Loss) of  (1,443.42) Lacs in the 
previous year. 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax is  (1,230.42) Lacs as against the Profit/ (Loss) of  (1,443.43) Lacs in the previous year. 

Performance of the Company during the year under review showed decrease in the sales due to the non-supportive 
market conditions and changing customer preferences and initiation of CIRP which affected the marketability of 
Company’s products. 

A detailed review of the operations of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 is given in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms a part of this report. 

3. STATUS OF CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS UNDER the IBC CODE The Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Company/ Corporate Debtor”) was 
initiated by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at Kolkata (“Adjudicating Authority”) under 
Section 7 of the IBC Code vide its order dated 10th June 2022. The Adjudicating Authority vide order of the same date 
appointed Mr. CA Anil Agarwal IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IPP00270/2017-2018/10514 as the Resolution 
Professional (“IRP”) to conduct the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor. Later, in the first CoC Meeting of the Corporate Debtor 
held on 8th July 2022, Mr. Anil Kohli was appointed as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) to run the CIRP of the Corporate 
Debtor. 

Resolution Professional issued invitation for Expression of Interest (hereinafter referred as ‘’EOI’’) in FORM G on August 
24, 2022 in compliance with Regulation 36A of CIRP Regulations, 2016 in the newspaper in English and one in Hindi 
language and other in Kannda language for the submission of a resolution plan in accordance with the provision of the 
Code. 

As per the published FORM G, the last date for submission of EOI was stipulated as September 9, 2022, and last date 
stipulated for submission of resolution plan was October 31, 2022. The Resolution Professional received three 
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Resolution Plans which were opened in presence of the COC Members in its 6th CoC Meeting held on November 03, 
2022. 

The RP with the approval of committee of creditors of the Company filed an application before the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata 
seeking an extension of the period of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company by Ninety (90) 
days in terms of section 12(2) of the insolvency and Bankruptcy code 2016. The Hon’ble NCLT Kolkata had granted an 
extension of the CIRP Period of the Company by a further period of Ninety (90) days with effect from December 7, 2022 
vide its order dated January 30,2023. 

All 3 (three) Resolution Plans were put to vote before the CoC members for their consideration, out of which the Resolution 
Plan submitted by Baumann Dekor Private Limited through Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh was approved by the CoC in its 11th 

meeting held on March 03, 2023 with 88.30% of voting shares. 

Subsequently, on March 09, 2023 the Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) 
of the Code read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Person) Regulation, 2016 was 
filed by the Resolution Professional with Hon’able National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its approval. 

The NCLT, Kolkata Bench approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Baumann Dekor Private Limited through Mr. Ajay 
Bikram Singh on 31st January, 2024 (“IBC/NCLT Order”). Pursuant to the Resolution Plan, as approved by the Hon’ble 
NCLT vide its order dated 31st January 2024, the Monitoring Committee was constituted for the proper implementation of 
the Approved Resolution Plan of M/s Baumann Dekor Private Limited. 

In terms of the approved Resolution Plan, a new Board was constituted in the current financial year i.e. on 11th March, 
2024 (“Reconstituted Board” or “Board”) and a new management was put in place who, till the implementation of the 
Resolution Plan, will function under the supervision of the Monitoring Committee. 

Furthermore, it is pertinent to mention here that in accordance with the provisions of the Code and the NCLT order, the 
approved resolution plan is binding on the Company and its employees, members, creditors, guarantors and other 
stakeholders involved. 

4. DIVIDEND 

As the Company has incurred losses during the period under review, the Board of Directors does not recommend any 
dividend on Equity Shares for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024. 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

During the year under review, the Company has transferred an amount equivalent to Rs.  11,793.06 lacs in capital 
reserve Account. Except the said amount no other amount has been transferred to reserves. 

6. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CHANGES FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TILL THE DATE OF THIS 
REPORT 

As specified herein above in the report the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), vide its order dated 31st 

January, 2024 approved the Resolution Plan duly submitted by M/s Baumann Dekor Private Limited through Mr. Ajay 
Bikram Singh and in terms of the approved Resolution Plan, a monitoring committee was constituted to monitor and 
oversee the implementation of the approved Resolution Plan. 

The Resolution Plan shall be implemented within a time period of 18 months from the date of its approval,i.e., up to 31st 
July, 2025. 

Furthermore, in terms of the approved Resolution Plan, following events/material changes have occurred from the closure 
of the Financial Year March 31, 2024 till the date of this report- 

1. Entire paid-up equity share capital of the Company as stood on March 31, 2024 was extinguished without any 

act and further deeds. 
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2. Following the extinguishment of the 100% paid-up equity share capital of the Company, new 50,00,000 equity 

shares of Rs. 2/- each were issued to the new Successful Resolution Applicant and persons nominated by the 
Successful Resolution Applicant. 

3. Following the allotment of new equity share capital to the Successful Resolution Applicant, the new Promoter, 
for the purpose of complying with the applicable requirement of Listing Regulations,diluted 5%of its 
shareholding, through an Offer For Sale (OFS) to the public shareholders. 

4. After closure of the Financial Year 2023-24 and up to the date of this report, in terms of the Aapproved Resolution 
Plan, the Successful Resolution Applicant has made the complete payment, as stipulated in the Plan, to all the 
stakeholders i.e. Financial Creditors, Operational Creditors and/or Government authorities/department(s). 

5. In terms of the approved Resolution Plan, the successful Resolution Applicant has passed/shall pass the 
necessary adjustment entries in the books of accounts of the company, pertaining to the writing off the pre- 
CIRP liabilities/debt of the Corporate Debtor. 

6. In addition to above, the Successful Resolution Applicant also passed the necessary entries, post the closure 
of the financial year till the date of this report, in its books of accounts for giving effect of the Resolution Plan to 
various assets and liabilities of the company. 

7. CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

The Company is engaged in the manufacture of silk fabrics and made-ups, home furnishings, fashion fabrics, handloom 
fabrics, double width fabrics, scarves, laces and belts, and embroidered fabrics. There has been no change in the nature 
of business of the company during the year under review and the Company continues to carry on its existing business. 

8. CHANGES IN CAPTIAL STRUCTURE 

There was no change in the authorised share capital and paid-up share capital of the Company during the year under 
review. 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted any stock 
options or sweat equity and NONE of the Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible into equity shares of the 
Company. However, subsequent to Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 to the date of this report: 

i. the existing paid-up equity share capital of the Company as stood on March 31, 2024 was extinguished without 
any act and further deeds. 

ii. Following the extinguishment of the 100% paid-up equity share capital of the Company, new 50,00,000 equity 
shares of Rs. 2/- each were issued to the new Successful Resolution Applicant and persons nominated by 
Successful Resolution Applicant. 

iii. Post the allotment of 100% equity share Capital to the new promoter i.e. the Successful Resolution Applicant, 
the new Promoter, for the purpose of complying with the applicable requirement of the Listing Regulations diluted 
5% of its shareholding, through an Offer For Sale (OFS), to the public shareholders. 

 
9. PUBLIC DEPOSIT SCHEME 

During the year, your Company has not accepted any deposits. There are no outstanding deposits as on date. 

10. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATES COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

The Company neither has any associate and joint venture, nor any subsidiary company (ie) have been liquidated or sold 
during the year under review. Accordingly, in terms of section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not 
required to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 
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11. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

As specified hereinabove that the Company was under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) from June 10, 
2022 up to January 31, 2024 and in terms of Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, on commencement 
of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the erstwhile Board of Directors of the Company 
were suspended and the same are being exercised by Mr. Anil Kohli, Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with the Interim Resolution Professional/Resolution Professional, as the case 
may be, from the initiation of the CIRP, i.e., June 10, 2022 up to January 31, 2024, i.e., the date of approval of Resolution 
Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench. 

Furthermore, after approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench, the monitoring committee was 
constituted in terms of the approved Resolution Plan and the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting held on March 4, 2024, 
further approved the reconstitution of a new Board of Directors, effective from March 11, 2024, thereby appointing new 
board, as nominated by the successful Resolution Applicant along with vacation/removal of the erstwhile Board of 
Directors of the Company. 

Accordingly, as on 31st March 2024, the board of directors consists of 6 (Six) members, of which 3 (three) were 
Independent Directors. The Board also comprises of one woman Independent Director. 

Details of Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the year are given below: 

Induction to the Board 

Pursuant to the NCLT order dated January 31, 2024, approving the resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its 
meeting held on March 4, 2024, appointed the following individuals as Members of the Board, as additional Director(s), 
effective from March 11, 2024: 

 Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh (DIN: 03096101), Chairman -Non-Executive Director 

 Ms. Jyothi Thomas (DIN: 03502492), Non-Executive Independent Director 

 Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 06992675), Non-Executive Independent Director 

 Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta (DIN: 08578380), Non-Executive Independent Director 

 Mr. Sunil Kumar (DIN: 09424480), Executive Director (Whole Time Director) 

 Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa (DIN: 10535137), Executive Director (Whole Time Director) 

Cessation of Directorship 

In line with the reconstitution of the Board, pursuant to the NCLT order dated January 31, 2024, approving the resolution 
plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting held on March 4, 2024, also resolved that the following erstwhile directors 
ceased to hold their positions, effective from March 11, 2024: 

 Mr. Sundeep Shah (DIN: 00484311), Chairman Cum Managing Director 

 Ms. Megha Shah (DIN: 07172597), Executive Director 

 Mr. Madh Kant Sharma (DIN: 01836989), Non-Executive Independent Director 

 Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah (DIN: 03426417), Non-Executive Independent Director 

 Mr. Abhishek Haralalka (DIN: 08836412), Non-Executive Independent Director 

 Mr. Ghanshyam das Harnathka (DIN: 01360829), Non-Executive Independent Director 
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Key Managerial Personnel 

 Mr. Sundeep Shah ceased to be the Managing Director of the company, effective from March 11, 2024. 

 Mr. Rahul Jaiswal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, resigned, effective from March 31, 2024. 

Information/Details of Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel post the Closure of the Financial year 
2023-24 and up to the date of this Report are given below: 

In terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, the entire existing equity share capital of the Company was required to be 
extinguished along with allotment of 100% new equity shares to the Successful Resolution Applicant (SRA). Keeping in 
view of the restructuring of the share capital, the Board of Directors had applied for the extension of the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company for a period of 3 months to the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, which was duly allowed by the 
Registrar of the Companies, Kolkata. We would also like to bring to the notice of the prestigious shareholders that the 
Company, in terms of the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations read with the Resolution Plan duly approved the 
Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 31.01.2024, the Company on October 16, 2024 has applied to the 
National Stock Exchange of India for an in-principal approval for the allotment of 100% equity shares to the New SRA and 
the persons nominated by the SRA. 

It is also pertinent to mention here that the appointments of the new Board of Director(s) by the Monitoring Committee 
were as Additional director(s) and in terms of Section 161 of the Act, the tenure of the Additional Director appointed was 
up to the date of Annual General Meeting or up to the date when the Annual General Meeting of the Company was required 
to be held. As specified above, the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata has extended the date up to December 31, 2024 for 
holding the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2023-24. 

As specified above that the company had filed an application on October 16, 2024 for the in-principal approval for allotment 
of equity shares to the new SRA but was unable to get the in-principal approval from National Stock Exchange (NSE) until 
December 31, 2024. Due to such non availability of the in-principal approval for the allotment of equity shares to the new 
SRA and persons nominated by the SRA, the Company was unable to restructure its share capital up to December 31, 
2024 which resulted into non-holding of the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 by 
December 31, 2024. 

Accordingly, due to above stated unavoidable circumstances, non-holding of Annual General Meeting by 31.12.2024, for 
the Financial Year 2023-24, the office of all the Directors of the Company, appointed on 11.03.2024 as above got vacated 
in terms of the provisions of Section 161 of the Act. Such a vacation of all members of Board due to applicable provisions 
of the law, the monitoring Committee in their meeting held on January 03, 2025 again reappointed the same persons to 
the Board of Directors of the Company. 

Cessation of Directorship post the closure of Financial Year 2023-24 and till the date of this Report 

As briefed hereinabove, non-holding of Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2023-24 by December 31, 2024 
leads to vacation of office of Board of the Company appointed by the Monitoring Committee w.e.f., March 11, 2024. The 
details of the Directors whose office were vacated w.e.f. January 01, 2025, due to non-holding of Annual General Meeting 
by December 31, 2024 are provided herein under:- 

 

DIN Number Name 
Director 

of Designation Category Date of 
Appointment 

Date of 
Cessation/Vacation 
of Office 

Reason for 
Vacation of 
Office 

03096101 Mr. Ajay Additional Chairman - March 11, January 01, 2025 Due to Non- 
 Bikram  Director Non-  2024   Holding of 
 Singh   Executive     Annual 
    Director     General 
         Meeting  by 
         December 
         31, 2024 
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03502492 Ms. Jyothi Additional Non- March 11, January 01, 2025 Due to Non- 

 Thomas Director Executive 2024   Holding of 
   Independent    Annual 
   Director    General 
       Meeting  by 
       December 
       31, 2024 

06992675 Mr. Praveen Additional Non- March 11, January 01, 2025 Due to Non- 
 Kumar Director Executive 2024   Holding of 
 Agarwal  Independent    Annual 
   Director    General 
       Meeting  by 
       December 
       31, 2024 

08578380 Mr.  Deepak Additional Non- March 11, January 01, 2025 Due to Non- 
 Kumar Director Executive 2024   Holding of 
 Gupta  Independent    Annual 
   Director    General 
       Meeting  by 
       December 
       31, 2024 
 Mr. Sunil Additional Executive March 11, January 01, 2025 Due to Non- 

09424480 Kumar  Director Director 2024   Holding of 
   (Executive (Whole Time    Annual 
   Director) Director)    General 
        Meeting 
        by December 
        31, 2024 

10535137 Mr. Ramesh Additional Executive March 11, January 01, 2025 Due to Non- 
 Chandragiri Director Director 2024   Holding of 
 Reddappa (Executive (Whole Time    Annual 
  Director) Director)    General 
       Meeting  by 
       December 
       31, 2024 

 
Re-Induction to the Board post the closure of Financial Year 2023-24 and till the date this Report 

As briefed hereinabove, non-holding of Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2023-24 by December 31, 2024 
leads to vacation of office of Board of the Company appointed by the Monitoring Committee w.e.f., March 11, 2024. Due 
to such vacation of the Board w.e.f. January 01, 2025, the monitoring committee again in their meeting had reconstituted 
the board w.e.f. January 03, 2025. The details of the Directors reappointed by the monitoring committee 
w.e.f. January 03, 2025, are provided herein under: - 

 
DIN Number Name of 

Director 
Designation Category Date of 

Appointment 
Date of 
Cessation/Vacation 
of Office 

Reason for 
Vacation of 
Office 

03096101 Mr. Ajay 
Bikram Singh 

Additional 
Director 

Chairman - 
Non- 
Executive 
Director 

January 03, 
2025 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

03502492 Ms. Jyothi 
Thomas 

Additional 
Director 

Non- 
Executive 
Independent 
Director 

January 03, 
2025 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

06992675 Mr. Praveen Additional Non- January 03, Not Applicable Not 
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 Kumar 

Agarwal 
Director Executive 

Independent 
Director 

2025  Applicable 

08578380 Mr. Deepak 
Kumar Gupta 

Additional 
Director 

Non- 
Executive 
Independent 
Director 

January 03, 
2025 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

 
09424480 

Mr. Sunil 
Kumar 

Additional 
Director 
(Executive 
Director) 

Executive 
Director 
(Whole Time 
Director) 

January 03, 
2025 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

10535137 Mr. Ramesh 
Chandragiri 
Reddappa 

Additional 
Director 
(Executive 
Director) 

Executive 
Director 
(Whole Time 
Director) 

January 03, 
2025 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

 
Details of the Key Managerial Personnel appointed and/or Ceased post the closure of the Financial Year and up 
to the date of this report 

 Mr. Sunil Kumar (DIN:- 09424480) ceased to be the Whole Director of the company, effective from January 1, 2025. 

 Mr. Sunil Kumar (DIN:- 09424480) was re-appointed as Whole Director of the company, effective from January 3,  
 2025. 

 Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa (DIN:- 10535137) ceased to be the Whole Director of the company, effective 
 from January 1, 2025. 

 Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa (DIN:- 10535137) was re-appointed as Whole Director of the company, effective 
from January 3, 2025. 

 Mr. Ravi Kumar, was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, effective from June 29, 2024. 

 Mr. Prateek Chhawchharia, ceased to be Chief Financial Officer of the Company effective from November 27, 2024. 

 Mr. Sunil Kumar, appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company effective from February 14, 2025. 

Furthermore, the Board of Directors in terms of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company along with the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company proposed the 
appointment/regularization of the Additional Directors of the Company duly appointed by the Monitoring Committee on 
January 03, 2025 along with the appointment of Mr. Sunil Kumar and Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa as Whole Time 
Director of the Company for a period of three years. 

The Board is of the opinion that the proposed appointee Director(s,) including Independent Directors, hold the requisite 
qualifications and experience. 

Details regarding the appointment of director as the provisions of Act and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-
2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government read with Regulation 
36(3) of the Listing Regulations are provided as part of notice to the AGM. 

12. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 of the Act, with respect to the Directors' Responsibility Statement, the 
Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirm that: 
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i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting standards read 
with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the 
same. 

ii) appropriate Accounting Policies have been selected and applied consistently. Judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 
and of the Profit and Loss Account for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024. 

iii) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and preventing & detecting fraud 
and other irregularities. 

iv) The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

v) The Internal Financial Controls were in place and that there are adequate and were operating effectively. 

vi) Proper systems are in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company and that such systems are 

adequate and operating effectively. 

13. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 

After the Commencement of CIRP ,i.e., w.e.f. June 10, 2022, in terms of the Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016, the powers of the Board were suspended up to the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, 
Kolkata Bench vide its order Dated January 31, 2024. 

 
During the CIRP ,i.e., up to January 31, 2024, the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by 
the Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC 2016 and powers of the Board of Directors 
were suspended. Hence, no meetings of the Directors were held after the Commencement of CIRP ,i.e., June 10, 2022 
and up to the continuation of CIRP till January 31, 2024. 

As briefed above that post the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 
January 31, 2024, the monitoring committee was constituted. Monitoring Committee in its meeting held on March 04, 
2024, re-constituted the Board of the Company thereby appointing new board of directors as nominated by the Successful 
Resolution applicant along with the cessation/vacation of the erstwhile directors of the company. 

Post the reconstitution of the committee on March 11, 2024; during the financial year, the newly constituted Board of 
Directors have met one time. However, no meeting of previous board of directors held during the year. The details 
regarding the attendance and the date of Board Meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part 
of this Report. 

 
14. DETAILS OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation contained 
in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and the same are 
vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

Subsequently, Baumann Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide its order 
dated January 31, 2024. 

 
in term of Approved Resolution Plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting held on March 4, 2024, reconstituted the 
new board in place of previous Board of the Company with effect from March 11, 2024, and the Audit Committee of the 
Board was re-constituted by the newly appointed board during their meeting held on March 30, 2024. However, no Audit 
Committee meetings were held during the year ended March 31, 2024. As a result, no details for Audit Committee 
meetings during the review period have been provided. 
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The composition of the Audit Committee along with the other details are provided in the Corporate Governance Report 
forming part of this Report. 

 
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP/GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation contained 
in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended and the same 
were vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

 
Subsequently, Baumann Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order 
dated January 31, 2024. 

 
in term of Approve Resolution Plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting held on March 4, 2024, constituted the new 
Board in place of the previous Board of the Company with effect from March 11, 2024, and the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee of the Board was re-constituted by the newly appointed Board during their meeting held on March 30, 2024. 
However, no Stakeholder Relationship Committee meetings were held during the year ended March 31, 2024. As a result, 
no details for Stakeholder Relationship Committee meetings during the review period have been provided. 

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee along with the other details are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of this Report. 

 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation contained 
in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended and the same 
were vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

 
Subsequently, Baumann Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order 
dated January 31, 2024. 

in term of Approve Resolution Plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting held on March 4, 2024, reconstituted the 
new Board in place of previous Board of the company with effect from March 11, 2024, and the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board was re-constituted by the newly appointed Board during their meeting held on 
March 30, 2024. However, no Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year ended March 
31, 2024. As a result, no details for Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings during the review period have 
been provided. 

 
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee along with other details are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of this Report. 

 
SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE 

 
Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation contained 
in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended and the same 
were vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

Subsequently, Baumann Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order 
dated January 31, 2024. 

 
Pursuant to the NCLT order dated January 31, 2024, approving the resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its 
meeting held on March 4, 2024, approved the reconstitution of the new Board of Directors, effective March 11, 2024. As 
a result, the existing Board was dissolved, leading to the dissolution of the Share Transfer Committee of Board as well. 
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15. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD 

After the Commencement of CIRP ,i.e,. w.e.f. June 10, 2022, in terms of the Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016, the powers of the Board were suspended up to the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, 
Kolkata Bench vide its order Dated January 31, 2024. 

 
During the CIRP ,i.e., up to January 31, 2024, the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by 
the Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC 2016, and powers of the Board of Directors are 
suspended. Hence, no meetings of the Directors were held after the Commencement of CIRP ,i.e., June 10, 2022 and up 
to the continuation of CIRP till January 31, 2024. 

 
As briefed above that post the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 
January 31, 2024, the monitoring committee were constituted. Monitoring Committee in its meeting held on March 04, 
2024 re-constituted the Board of the Company thereby appointing new board of directors as nominated by the Successful 
Resolution applicant along with the cessation/vacation of the erstwhile Directors of the Company. 

As the newly board was constituted only on March 11, 2024, accordingly, no formal Board evaluation has been carried 
out during the year under review. 

 
16. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The company was in receipt of Declarations, from the newly constituted board (constituted w.e.f. March 11, 2024), 
pursuant to the Sections 164(2) and 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16(and 25(8) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 that they have registered their names in the Independent Directors’ Databank. In the opinion of the 
Board, the Independent Directors hold highest standard of integrity and possess the requisite qualifications, experience, 
expertise, and proficiency. 

 
17. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, framed nomination and 
remuneration Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration as well 
as policy on the appointment and remuneration of other employees. The Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate 
Governance Report that forms part of this Annual Report. The policy is also available on the website of the Company at 
www.easternsilk.com. 

 
18. DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 

The particulars required to be furnished under Section 134(3) (m) of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
are set out in “Annexure I”, which forms part of the report. 

19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed to this report and 
marked as “Annexure II”. 

 
In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 or any statutory modification or amendment in these Rules, a 
statement showing the name of top ten employees in terms of Remuneration drawn forms part of the Report and annexed 
to this report and marked as “Annexure II”. Further, there was no employee in the Company who has drawn the 
remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules. Therefore, the disclosure for the same is not required. 

 
20. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and adhere to the corporate 
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governance requirements set out by SEBI. The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing 
Regulations forms an integral part of this Report. The requisite certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company 
confirming compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance is attached to the report on Corporate Governance. 

 
A separate section on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis together with the Auditor’s 
Certificate confirming the compliance of conditions on Corporate Governance as per Schedule V of Listing Regulations 
with the Stock Exchange form part of the Annual Report as “Annexure III”. 

 
21. CODE OF CONDUCT 

As per the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board of the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for all the Board members 
of the Company and Senior Management Personnel as well and the same has been posted on Website of the Company 
which can be access by the following link www.easternsilk.com. 

The certificate pertaining compliance to the Code of Conduct is also annexed to the report and marked as “Annexure IV” 

22. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GURANTEES, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES MADE 
 

The particulars of loans, guarantees given, security provided and investments made during the year as per Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, form part of the notes and schedules of the Financial Statements provided in this 
Annual Report. 

 
23. CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 
After the Commencement of CIRP ,i.e., w.e.f. June 10, 2022, in terms of the Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016, the powers of the Board were suspended up to the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, 
Kolkata Bench vide its order Dated January 31, 2024. 

 
During the CIRP ,i.e., up to January 31, 2024, the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by 
the Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC 2016 and powers of the Board of Directors are 
suspended. Hence, no meetings of the Directors were held after the Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022 and up 
to the continuation of CIRP till January 31, 2024. 

As briefed above that post the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 
January 31, 2024, the monitoring committee was constituted. Monitoring Committee in its meeting held on March 04, 2024 
re-constituted the Board of the Company thereby appointing new board of directors as nominated by the Successful 
Resolution applicant along with the cessation/vacation of the erstwhile directors of the company w.e.f. March 11, 2024. 

 
Furthermore, all the related party transactions were entered on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and 
are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. There are no materially significant 
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel etc. which may 
have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large or which warrants the approval of the shareholders. 
Accordingly, no transactions are being reported in Form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, the details of the transactions with Related Parties are provided in the 
Company’s financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards. 

 
The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on Company’s website and can be 
accessed at www.easternsilk.com. 

24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 

Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation 
contained in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended and 
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the same were vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

Subsequently, Baumann Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order 
dated January 31, 2024. 

 
Pursuant to the NCLT order dated January 31, 2024, approving the resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its 
meeting on March 4, 2024, approved the reconstitution of the new Board of Directors, effective March 11, 2024. As a 
result, the existing board was dissolved, leading to the dissolution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of 
Board as well. The provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

 
25. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 

 
They are self-explanatory and do not require any explanations 

 
26. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the Company and the policy of the Company. During the year, 
your Directors and RP made sure that all the risks that the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, 
liquidity, security, property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks have been identified and assessed and there 
is an adequate risk management infrastructure in place capable of addressing those risks. 

 
The Company monitors, manages and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its strategic long- 
term objectives. The risk management process is reviewed periodically in order to keep it aligned with the emerging 
risks across the globe. Various programs involve risk identification, assessment and risk mitigation planning for strategic, 
operational, and financial compliance related risks across various levels of the organization. 

 
The Board is identifying the elements of risks involved along with its severity and their impact on the existence of the 
Company. 

 
Furthermore, in terms of the Listing Regulations, the Company is not required to form Risk Management Committee. 

 
27. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

 
The Company has established Internal Financial Control System for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the 
business including adherence to Company's Policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable Financial 
Statements. 

 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, 
such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed. 

 
28. STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 
M/s B.K. Shroff & CO., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Regn. No. 302166E) was appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company, for a period of 5 years, commencing from the conclusion of 76th AGM till the conclusion of the 
81st AGM to be held in the year 2027. 

 
Audit Observations and response for the same for the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2024 

 
Statutory Auditors have expressed qualified opinions. The details of the audit qualification and the response to the same 
are furnished below: - 
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Sr. No Qualified Opinion Reply of Management 
1 a.) Note No. 6 to the Ind AS financial results which 

states that in compliance with the approved 
Resolution Plan and order from the Hon'ble National 
Company law Tribunal, the accounting adjustments 
have been carried out related to extinguishment of 
liabilities / claims and write off impaired and/or 
doubtful assets during the Financial Year ending 
31.03.2024. 

 
The net impact of the same Rs. 11,793.06 lakhs has 
been transferred to the Capital Reserve Account as 
per the approved Resolution plan. The cancellation of 
existing share capital and 
infusion of new capital is in progress and its 
effect will be taken in accounts on finalization. 

 
The above adjustments are subject to reversal in the 
event of non-compliance with the terms of Resolution 
plan. 

a.)The adjustments have been carried out in the 
financial statements as per the amount 
allocated as per the resolution plan approved by 
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal 
(NCLT) order dated 31.01.2024. 

Further, clause 145 of the Hon’ble NCLT order 
states that “Thus, on the date of approval of the 
resolution plan by the Adjudicating Authority, all 
such claims, that are not a part of the resolution 
plan, shall stand extinguished and no person 
will be entitled to initiate or continue any 
proceedings in respect to a claim, which is not 
part of the resolution plan. 

 
Further, as mentioned in the Approved 
Resolution Plan, the existing share capital of 
INR 15,79,05,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen 
Crores Seventy-Nine Lakhs Five Thousand 
Only) will be written off and a fresh equity 
infusion by the Resolution Applicant will be 
made as per the requirement of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (LODR Regulations) in the 
upcoming financial year as the same is under 
process. 

Hence, all the adjustments comply with the 
approved resolution plan. 

Further, The SRA, Baumann Dekor Private 
Limited, has paid the following amount till now: 

 
i.) The Performance guarantee amount of INR 
5,81,51,600.00 on approval of the plan by COC. 

ii.) INR 12,22,22,200/- prepaid on 5th Apr’24 
(due for payment on 30th April 2024) towards 
payment of 1st tranche as per proposed 
distribution to financial creditors, government 
dues, CIRP cost and operational creditors as 
per approved resolution plan. 

 
There is no default in any payment from the SRA 
and prepayment of the first tranche and infusion of 
required working capital shows the intent to run the 
entity as a going concern 

2 b.) Note No. 10 to the Ind AS financial results which 
states that 'No Lien Term Deposit' with the 
Consortium bankers for Rs. 2,400.00 Lakhs towards 
5% deposit of the amount outstanding against the 
offer of one-time settlement were made, of which 
Rs. 392.59 Lakhs have been appropriated by few 

b.) The new management of the company is in the 
process of getting the original Deposit documents 
from the respective Bank / Institutions / Ex- 
promoters. 

 
Management is of the view that the deposit against 
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 banks towards recovery of their overdue interest. The 

same has not been recognized by the company and 
no adjustment has been made and the principal 
amount of deposit is continued to be shown as 'No 
Lien Term Deposit' without accounting for interest 
accruals. Also, no confirmation has been received 
from the said banks. 

OTS was made before CIRP process, and if the same 
was against the Interest settlement, it would have 
been adjusted in the previous year’s financials. 

 
Confirmation of the deposit is under process and 
accordingly, the deposit amount has been carried 
forward from the last financial year ending 
31.03.2023 and the same will be adjusted in the 
subsequent financials. 

 
However, in the opinion of Management, this should 
not affect the company’s ability to continue as going 
concern. 

3 C.) Note No. 11 to the Ind AS financial results which 
states that Confirmation of bank balances of all bank 
accounts at Kolkata as on 31.03.2024 is under 
process of acquiring and reconciling. 

c.)The accounts are dormant and the cumulative 
balance of all the Bank accounts in Kolkata is 5.78 
Lakh as on 31.03.2023. Activation of these bank 
accounts and confirmation of bank balances of all 
bank accounts at Kolkata as on 31.03.2024 is under 
process of acquiring and reconciling during the 
implementation process. 

 
However, in the opinion of Management, this should 
not affect the company’s ability to continue as going 
Concern 

 
 

29. COST AUDITORS 
 

During the FY 2023-24, due to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company has not approved the re- 
appointment of the appointed M/s. N. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountant for conducting the audit of cost records of 
the Products ‘Silk fabrics’, ‘Cotton Fabrics’, ‘Linen Fabrics’ and ‘Polyester Fabrics’ maintained by the Company for the 
Financial Year 2023-24. 

However, Post Reconstitution of the New Board of Directors of the company, in their meeting held on 16th May 2024 
pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, has re-appointed M/s. N. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountant for conducting the audit of cost records of the 
Products ‘Silk fabrics’, ‘Cotton Fabrics’, ‘Linen Fabrics’ and ‘Polyester Fabrics’ maintained by the Company for the 
Financial Year 2023-24. 

 
The Company maintained the cost records as specified by the Central Government under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
The cost audit report of M/s N. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountant, for the financial year 2023-24 does not contain 
any adverse qualification or remarks. 

 
30. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

 
During the FY 2023-24, due to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company has not approved the appointment 
of the Secretarial auditor of the company for the Financial Year 2023-24. 
 
However, post re-constitution the New Board of Directors of the company, in their meeting held on 16th May 2024, pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, has appointed M/s H Nitin & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary as 
Secretarial Auditor, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2023- 24. 

 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is annexed herewith marked as “Annexure-V” 
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to this Report. The observations of the Secretarial Auditors are self-explanatory in nature. 

 
31. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 
Yours Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India. 

 
32. WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act, the draft Annual Return of the Company for 
the Financial Year 31st March, 2024 is uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
www.easternsilk.com.The final Annual Return shall be uploaded in the same web link after the said Return is filed with 
the Registrar of Companies. 

 
33. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 
The Company in pursuance to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Act has formulated a vigil mechanism (whistle 
blower policy) for its Directors and Employees of the Company to report their genuine concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate 
safeguards against victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism. In exceptional cases, Directors 
and employees have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) 
is available on the company’s website www.easternsilk.com. 

34. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 (“the Code”) vide order dated 10th June, 2022 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), 
Kolkata. 

 
Resolution Plan submitted by Baumann Dekor Private Limited was approved by CoC, and the same was filed with NCLT, 
Kolkata which approved the same on 31st January, 2024. 

 
No other Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status 
and company's operations in future. 

 
35. DISCLOSURES  UNDER  SEXUAL  HARASSMENT  OF  WOMEN  AT  WORKPLACE  (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 
The Company has zero tolerance towards discrimination and harassments including sexual harassment and always 
strives to create and provide a healthy environment in the workplace(s). It has in place a Policy for prevention of Sexual 
Harassment at the Workplace in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered 
under this policy. No complaint on sexual harassment was received during the Financial Year 2023-2024. The details are 
as under: 

The details of the sexual harassment cases received, disposed of and pending are given below:- 
 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment Cases pending 
in the beginning of the 
Financial Year i.e.01.04.2023 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases received 
during the Financial year 
2023-24 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases disposed 
off during the Financial year 
2023-24 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases pending 
at the end of Financial year 
2023-24 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 
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36. CONFIRMATION FOR THE COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961. 

The Company hereby confirm and declare the due compliance of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. 

 
37. GENERAL 

 
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the period under review: 

Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 

Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
 

Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme. 
 
 

38. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 
 

The Business Responsibility & Sustainability Report is not mandatorily applicable to the company and has not been 
prepared. 

 
39. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OTHER THAN THOSE REPORTABLE TO CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

 
There was no instance of fraud during the year 2023-2024, which required the statutory auditors to report under Section 
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. Further, the internal auditor and secretarial auditor 
have not reported any fraud in their report. 

 
40. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 
The details about the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process along with the present status of the same has been duly 
briefed in the various section(s) of this Report. 

 
41. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME 
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF: 

 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 (“the Code”) vide order dated 10th June, 2022 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), 
Kolkata. 

 
Resolution Plan submitted by Baumann Dekor Private Limited was approved by CoC, and the same was filed with NCLT, 
Kolkata which approved the same on 31st January, 2024. 

 
Apart from the above, the Company did not enter into any transaction for One Time Settlement of loan/borrowings from 
Bank. 

 
42. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 
In compliance with the requirements of Listing Regulations, the Company has put in place a familiarization programme for 
the Independent Directors to familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibility as Directors, the working of the 
Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model etc. The details of the familiarization 
programme are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also available on the Company’s website at 
www.easternsilk.com. 
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For & On behalf of the Board 
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DIN: 09424480 DIN: 10535137 

 

 
Date: 30.08.2025 
Place: Bengaluru 
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“Annexure I” 

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 

 
 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

The Company is engaged in the continuous review of energy costs, reduction in energy generation cost through 

improved operational and maintenance practices. 

(A) Power and Fuel Consumption 

1. Electricity Current 
Year 

 

 
Previous 

Year 

 
(a) Purchased Units 1997357.76 21,11,832.00 

Total Amount  ̀ 18,937,914.00 1,98,51,226.00 

Rate/Unit ` 9.40 9.40 

(b) Own Generation through 

Diesel Generator Units 2800 27,384.00 

Total Amount  ̀ 246092 9,37,619.00 

Cost/Unit ` 87.89 34.24 

2. (a) Briquettes 

Quantity Kgs 209313 6,73,695.00 

Total Amount  ̀ 1883819 57,49,153 

Cost/Unit ` 9/KG 8.53 

(b) Fire Wood 

Quantity Kgs. 1159828 8,68,480.00 

Total Amount  ̀Cost/Unit 
 ̀

5567175  
4.80 

26,18,205.00 
3.01 

 
 

(B) Consumption per unit of products: 

Fabrics  Mtrs 

 
 
 

393404.90 

 
 

5,41,210.41 

Electricity ` 48.14 37.10 



 A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 3 - 2 0 2 4  

52 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Briquettes ` 4.78 16.95 

Fire Wood ` 14.15 0.22 
Diesel ` 0.63 3.62 

 
(ii) Steps taken for utilizing alternate source of energy: Nil 
(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil 

 
 
 

 
(B) Technology Absorption 

 

1. Efforts in brief, made towards technology 
Absorption 

Latest software’s are used for better design development. 

 
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above Improved products. 

 
 

 
3. Details of imported technology Not Applicable. 

 
 
 

4. Expenditure on R & D Capital . Nil 
Recurring  . Nil 
R&D Expenditure  - 
as a percentage of 
turnover 

 
 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings & outgo 
(In Lakhs) 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 
Foreign exchange earnings 24.72 243.79 
Foreign exchange outgo 1.81 156.79 
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“ANNEXURE II” 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 
Sr. no. Particulars 

i. The Ratio of the remuneration of 
each Director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of 
the Company and the percentage 
increase in remuneration of each 
Director, 

The Directors of the Company were not paid any remuneration during the Financial year 
ended on March 31, 2024. Hence, no applicable 

ii. The percentage increase in, Chief 
Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary in the 
financial year. 

a. CFO- 30% increase 

b. Company secretary-42% increase 

iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 
financial year. 12% 

iv The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company. 271 
v. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the 
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration 

The Directors of the 
Company were not paid any 
remuneration during the 
Financial year ended on 
March 31, 2024. Hence, no 
applicable 

vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company. 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULES 
5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014, A 
STATEMENT SHOWING 

THE NAME OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN 
 

SL. 
No. 

Employee Name Designation Nature of 
Duties 

Qualification Joining 
date 

Age 
(In 
Years) 

Experience 
(Yrs) 

Gross 
Earning 
(In Rs.) 

Previous 
Employment 
Designation 

1 VISHALAKSHI S MANAGER DESIGN 
STUDIO 

DIPLOMA 
IN TEXTILE 

01/04/2013 41 
years 

11 years 13,89,261 
Designer 

   2 PRATEEK 
CHHAWCHHARIA 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

FINANCE &
ACCOUNTS 

Degree 01/11/2016 35 years 7 years 12,44,938 Personal file 
not available 
to retrieve 
Previous 
Employment 
Designation 

  3 H SRINIVASAN DESIGNER DESIGN 
STUDIO 

Diploma 
Textile 

23/04/2007 42 years 17 years 10,51,050 Personal file 
not available 
to retrieve 
Previous 
Employment 
Designation 
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4 KODANDARAMA A MANAGER PLANNING MBA 01/01/2005 46 years 19 years 9,55,500 

Started the carrier in 
Eastern Silk 
Industries Ltd. 

5 DILIP SHAH VICE 
PRESIDENT 

VICE 
PRESIDENT 

Not available 01/06/2003 50 years 21 years 9,55,500 
Started the carrier in 
Eastern Silk 
Industries Ltd. 

6 MANU RUSTAGI Merchandiser Merchandiser Degree 1/9/2008 45 years 16 years 8,82,295 Personal file 
not available 
to retrieve 
Previous 
Employment 
Designation 

7 MAHESH K DESIGNER DESIGN STUDIO Degree 11/08/2010 41 years 14 years 8,24,154 Personal file 
not available 
to retrieve 
Previous 
Employment 
Designation 

8 RAVINDRA KUMAR MERCHANDI 
SER 

MERCHANDISE
R 

Diploma 01/10/2015 39 years 8 years 8,13,236 Personal file 
not available 
to retrieve 
Previous 
Employment 
Designation 

9 MALLAPPA DESAI MANAGER UTILITY Degree 02/11/2003 53 years 20 years 8,66,775 Started the carrier in 
Eastern Silk 
Industries Ltd. 

10 JAGADEESH MANAGER PREPARATORY Degree 01/06/2022 48 years 2 years 7,23,450 Supervisor 
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“Annexure III” 

 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
In accordance with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock 
Exchange, a Report containing the details of Corporate Governance of Eastern Silk Industries Limited for the year 2023-24 is given 
below. 

 
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 

 
The Company lays emphasis on good corporate practices which will enable the management to conduct the affairs of the Company 
in a transparent manner and culminate in optimum use of its resources for achieving highest standards of corporate governance and 
the principles of integrity, transparency, accountability and commitment to values. The framework is driven by the objective of 
enhancing long term stakeholder value without compromising on ethical standards and corporate social responsibilities. The Company 
believes in transparency, empowerment, accountability and integrity in its operations having duly delegated authority to the various 
functional heads who are responsible for attaining the corporate plans with the ultimate purpose of enhancement of “stakeholder 
value”. 

 
CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP) 

The Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority, i.e., National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, admitted the Company Petition i.e. C.P. No. 
(IB) No.588/KB/2020 on 10.06.2022, filed by the Financial Creditor, Export-Import Bank of India initiating Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as “Code”) in the matter of M/s. 
Eastern Silk Industries Ltd. The Adjudicating Authority appointed Mr. Anil Agarwal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) vide its 
said order dated 10.06.2022. 

The Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) in its first meeting held on 08.07.2022 approved the appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution 
Professional (“RP”). Thereupon, the CoC filed before Hon’ble NCLT an application for the appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution 
Professional in the captioned matter. Subsequently, the Hon’ble NCLT allowed the application and appointed Mr. Anil Kohli as 
Resolution Professional in this matter vide its Order dated 29.07.2022 (copy of the same was received on 04.08.2022). 

The CIRP is being carried out by the Resolution Professional as per the provisions of the Code and during CIRP, the resolution plan, 
as submitted by Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh through Baumann Dekor Private Limited (SRA-Successful Resolution Applicant), in terms of 
the applicable provisions of the Code, was approved by the CoC in its 11th Meeting held on March 03, 2023. 

After approval of the resolution plan from the CoC, the Resolution Professional filed the CoC approved Resolution Plan with Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench on 09.03.2023 and the same was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 31.01.2024. 

Pursuant to the approval of the plan and for the purpose of its implementation, a monitoring committee was constituted in terms of the 
approved Resolution Plan, and post constitution, the monitoring committee, in terms of the approved Resolution Plan, reconstituted 
the Board of the Company, thereby appointing a new Board of Directors of the Company along with the removal/vacation of the existing 
Board of Directors. 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the IBC Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) and the NCLT order, the approved 
resolution plan is binding on the Company and its employees, members, creditors, guarantors and other stakeholders involved. 

 
Members are requested to read this report in light of the fact that the Reconstituted Board and the new management is currently 
implementing the resolution plan. 

During the period 1st April 2023 to 10th March 2024: 
 

(a) The management of the affairs of the company shall vest in the Resolution Professional. 
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(b) The powers of the Board of Directors company shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Resolution Professional. 
(c) Be responsible for complying with the requirements under any law for the time being in force. 

During the period 11th March 2024 to 31st March 2024: 

New Board reconstituted on 11th March 2024 with the following new directors Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh, Mr. Sunil Kumar, Mr. Ramesh 
Chandragiri Reddappa, Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta, Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal and Mrs. Jyothi Thomas. 

 
 

SIZE AND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 
 

As per the NCLT order dated 10th June 2022, the powers of the board was suspended and was appointed Mr.Anil Agarwal as the 
Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to manage the affairs of the Company. Subsequently, Mr. Anil Kohli was confirmed as the 
Resolution Professional (“RP”) by the committee of creditors (“CoC”) at their meeting held on 8th July, 2022. 

During the period under review, resolution plan was approved by Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated January 31, 2024 
 

In term of approved resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated January 31, 2024 a new Board was constituted by the 
Monitoring Committee in the current financial year i.e. on 11th March, 2024 (“Reconstituted Board” or “Board”) in place of the previous 
Board of Directors. 

 
The names and categories of the Directors on the Board and also the number of Directorship and committee memberships held by 
them in other Companies as on 31st March, 2024, are given below. 

 

Name of the 
Director 

 
Category 

No. of other 
Directorship 

No. of Membership 
of 

other Board 
or Committee 

No. of 
chairperson 

in 
other Board or 

Committee 

 
Mr. Ajay Bikram 
Singh 

Chairman & Non- 

Executive- Non- 

independent 

 
4 

 
– 

 
– 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Executive Director 4 – – 

Mr. Ramesh 

Chandragiri 

Reddappa 

Executive Director  
– 

 
– 

 
– 

Mr. Deepak Kumar 

Gupta 

Non-Executive, 

Independent 

Director 

 
3 

 
– 

 
– 

Mr. Praveen Kumar 

Agarwal 

Non-Executive, 

Independent 

Director 

 
0 

 
– 

 
– 

 
Ms. Jyothi Thomas 

Non-Executive, 

Independent 

Director 

 
0 

 
– 

 
– 

*Mr. Sundeep Shah 
Chairman & 

Managing Director 
1 - - 
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*Ms. Megha Shah Executive Director – - - 

*Mr. Madhu Kant 

Sharma 

Non-Executive, 

Independent 

Director 

 
– 

  
- 

*Mr. Pankaj Kumar 

Deorah 

Non-Executive, 

Independent 

Director 

 
1 

 
- 

 
- 

*Mr Abhishek 

Haralalka 

Non-Executive, 

Independent 

Director 

 
1 

 
- 

 
- 

 
Note 1: Number of Directorships in other Companies excludes Directorships in Foreign Companies and Companies incorporated 
under Section 25/8 of the Companies Act, 1956/2013. 

Note 2: Board Committee Chairmanships/Memberships in other Companies includes only Chairpersons/ Memberships of Audit 
Committees and Stakeholders Relationship Committees. 

Note 3: Board Committee Memberships in other Companies includes Chairpersons in Committees of other Companies. 
 
 

*Note 4: As briefed above that Post the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order 
dated January 31, 2024, the monitoring committee was constituted. Monitoring Committee in its meeting held on March 
04, 2024 re-constituted the Board of the Company w.e.f March 11, 2024, thereby appointing new board of directors as 
nominated by the Successful Resolution applicant along with the cessation/vacation of the erstwhile directors of the 
company. 

The details of the Directors ceased/removed from the directorship of the company, along with their date of cessation and 
reason for Cessation/Removal, are given herein below:- 

 
DIN Name of Director Category Date of 

Cessation/Removal 
Reason of 
Cessation/Removal 

00484311 Mr. Sundeep Shah Chairman Cum 
Managing Director 

11.03.2024 Ceased/Removed in 
terms of the 
approved Resolution 
Plan 

07172597 Ms. Megha Shah Executive Director 11.03.2024 Ceased/Removed in 
terms of the 
approved Resolution 
Plan 

01836989 Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

11.03.2024 Ceased/Removed in 
terms of the 
approved Resolution 
Plan 

03426417 Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

11.03.2024 Ceased/Removed  in 
terms of the 
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    approved Resolution 

Plan 
08836412 Mr. Abhishek Haralalka Non-Executive 

Independent Director 
11.03.2024 Ceased/Removed in 

terms of the 
approved Resolution 
Plan 

01360829 Mr. Ghanshyam das 
Harnathka 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

21.09.2023 Ceased to be director 
due to completion of 
tenure for which he 
was appointed 

 
 

The Company through periodical presentation to Board of Directors and various committee of Directors and individually provides an 
opportunity to independent directors to facilitate their active participation and familiarise the Company’s business 

Details of the Board Meeting held along with Attendance of Directors at the meetings of Board and at last Annual General 
Meeting 

After the Commencement of CIRP i.e. w.e.f. June 10, 2022, in terms of the Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, 
the powers of the Board are suspended upto the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order 
Dated January 31, 2024. 

 
During the CIRP i.e. upto January 31, 2024 the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by the Resolution 
Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC 2016 and powers of the Board of Directors are suspended. Hence, no 
meetings of the Directors were held after the Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022 and upto the continuation of CIRP till 
January 31, 2024. 

 
As briefed above that Post the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated January 31, 
2024, the monitoring committee were constituted Monitoring Committee in its meeting held on March 04, 2024 re-constituted the Board 
of the Company thereby appointing new board of directors as nominated by the Successful Resolution applicant along with the 
cessation/vacation of the erstwhile directors of the company. 

Post the reconstitution of the committee on March 11, 2024; during the financial year, the newly constituted Board of Directors was 
met one time. However, no meeting of previous board of directors held during the year. 

The Details of the Board Meeting held during the period under review i.e. F.Y 2023-24 along with the details of the attendance of the 
Directors at the meeting of board of directors and the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) was as follows: 

 
Name of the Director Date of Board Meeting Meeting Attended Whether attended the last AGM 

Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh 30/03/2024 1 out of 1 NA 
Mr. Sunil Kumar 30/03/2024 1 out of 1 NA 
Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri 
Reddappa 

30/03/2024 1 out of 1 NA 

Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta 30/03/2024 1 out of 1 NA 
Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal 30/03/2024 1 out of 1 NA 
Ms. Jyothi Thomas 30/03/2024 1 out of 1 NA 
Mr. Sundeep Shah N.A N.A NA 
Ms. Megha Shah N.A N.A NA 
Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma N.A N.A NA 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah N.A N.A NA 
Mr Abhishek Haralalka N.A N.A NA 
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Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 

 
NONE of the directors are related to each other under section 2(76) the Companies Act, 2013 

 
Number of Shares and Convertible instruments held by directors as on March 31, 2024: 

 
Name of the Director No. of Shares and Convertible instruments held 
Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh Nil 
Mr. Sunil Kumar Nil 
Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri 
Reddappa 

Nil 

Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta Nil 
Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal Nil 
Ms. Jyothi Thomas Nil 

 
familiarization programmes to Independent Directors 

 
On appointment of an individual as Director, the Company issues a formal Letter of Appointment to the concerned director, setting 
out in detail, the terms of appointment, duties and responsibilities. Each newly appointed Independent Director is taken through a 
formal Familiarisation Program providing information relating to the Company, Business Divisions, industry, business model of the 
Company, geographies in which Company operates, etc. The programme also provides awareness of the Independent Directors on 
their roles, rights, responsibilities towards the Company. Further, the Familiarisation Programme also provides information relating to 
the financial performance of the Company and budget and control process of the Company. 

 
List of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of its business. 

 
The relevant skill/expertise/competencies of the Board of Directors of the Company in the context of its multifaceted activities like 
manufacture of silk yarn, fabrics and made ups, home furnishings, fashion fabrics, double width fabric, scarves, laces, melts and 
embroidered fabrics. Shall be finance, industry experience, law, risk management and corporate governance and these are available 
with the Board. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, as on March 31, 2024, possesses the requisite skill/expertise/competencies in the context of 
its business to function effectively. The core skill/expertise/ competencies that are available with respective directors are as under: 

 
Names of Directors who have Core skills/expertise/ competencies identified by the Board of 
such skills/ expertise/ Directors as required in the context of its business 
competence  

Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh Corporate Governance, Entrepreneur & Leadership 
Mr. Sunil Kumar Corporate Governance, Business management 
Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa Corporate Governance, Textile professional 
Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta Corporate Governance, Financial management. 
Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal Corporate Governance, Project management 
Ms. Jyothi Thomas Corporate Governance, Project management 

 
 

Independent Directors 
 

Independent Directors play a significant role in the governance processes of the Board by enriching the Board’s decision making and 
preventing possible conflicts of interest that may emerge in such decision making. 

 
The Company has appointed Independent Directors as per the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations. 
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Confirmation with respect to the Independent Directors 

NONE of the existing Independent Directors serves as Independent Director in more than seven listed companies in line with the 
requirements of Listing Regulations. The said Independent Directors have also confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence 
as laid down in the Act and Listing Regulations, as amended and they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or 
may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment 
and without any external influence. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing 
Regulations and are independent of management. 

 
In compliance with rule 6(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors 
have also registered themselves on the Independent director’s data bank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

Meeting of Independent Directors and Attendance Record: 
 

Independent Directors are required to meet at least once in a year to deal with matters listed out in Regulation 25 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV to the Companies 
Act, 2013 which inter-alia includes, review of the performance of non-independent directors, Chairman and the Board as a whole and 
assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Management and the Board that is necessary to perform 
the duties by the Board of Directors. 

 
The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Company/ Corporate Debtor”) was 
Initiated the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at Kolkata (“Adjudicating Authority”) under Section 7 of the 
IBC Code vide its order dated 10th June 2022. The Powers of the Previous Board of Directors were suspended, and Mr. Kohli, was 
appointed as Resolution professional and was managing the affair of the company till the date of approval of Resolution plan by 
Hon’ble NCLT, vide order dated 31st January, 2024. . 

However, In term of approved resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated January 31, 2024 a new Board was 
constituted with the following directors by the Monitoring Committee in the current financial year i.e. on 11th March, 2024 
(“Reconstituted Board” or “Board”) in place of the previous Board of Directors. 

 
S.N. DIN NAME Designation/Category Date of Appointment 
1 03096101 Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh Additional Director( Non- 

Executive Non- 
Independent Director) 

11/03/2024 

2 03502492 Ms. Jyothi Thomas Additional Director (Non- 
Executive Independent 
Director) 

11/03/2024 

3 06992675 Mr. Praveen Kumar 
Agarwal 

Additional  Director  (Non- 
Executive Independent 
Director 

11/03/2024 

4 08578380 Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta Additional Director Non- 
Executive Independent 
Director 

11/03/2024 

5 09424480 Mr. Sunil Kumar Whole-Time Director 
(Executive Director) 

11/03/2024 

6 10535137 Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri 
Reddappa 

Whole-Time Director 
(Executive Director) 

11/03/2024 

 
Hence, no meetings of the Independent directors was held during the period under review. 
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Reasons for the Cessation/Resignation of Independent Director 

During the period under review there were no resignation from the Independent Directors of the company. 
 

However, the details of the Independent Directors ceased/removed from the directorship of the company, along with their date of 
cessation and reason for Cessation/Removal, are given herein below:- 

 
DIN Name of Director Category Date of 

Cessation/Removal 
Reason of 
Cessation/Removal 

01836989 Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

11.03.2024 Ceased/Removed in 
terms of the approved 
Resolution 
Plan 

03426417 Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

11.03.2024 Ceased/Removed in 
terms of the approved 
Resolution 
Plan 

08836412 Mr. Abhishek Haralalka Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

11.03.2024 Ceased/Removed in 
terms of the approved 
Resolution 
Plan 

01360829 Mr. Ghanshyam das 
Harnathka 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

21.09.2023 Ceased to be director 
due to completion of 
tenure for which he 
was appointed 

 
Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management 

 
The Board of Eastern Silk Industries Limited had laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board members and Senior Management 
of the Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the Company (weblink 
http://www.easternsilk.com/InvestorRelations/CodeOfConduct). 

 
The company has received the certificate from the Whole Time Director of the company regarding the compliance of the Code of 
Conduct by All Board members and Senior Management. The same is annexed to the Report. 

 
The Directors of the Company have expertise and skills in diverse fields and are well versed to guide the team in the core areas as 
mentioned above and lead the Company in the coming years. 

 
 

COMMITTEE(S) OF THE BOARD 

I. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
(a) Brief description of the Audit Committee. 

 
Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation contained 
in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company including committee of the board stand 
suspended and the same are vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 
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Subsequently, Bauman Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 
January 31, 2024. 

 
In term of approve resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting held on March 4, 2024, reconstituted the 
new board and in place of previous Board of the company with effect from March 11, 2024. Post the reconstitution of the 
board the Audit Committee of the Company was re-constituted by the new Board of Directors in their meeting held on 30th March 
2024, to exercise powers and discharge functions as stipulated in Section 177 of the Act and Listing Regulations, 

 
(b) Terms of reference of Audit Committee 

 
The terms of reference of Audit Committee includes: 

 
1. Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 

financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 
 

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the auditor 
and the fixation of audit fees. 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the auditors. 
 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual/Quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval, 
with particular reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in 
terms of clause (c) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 
c. Major accounting entries involving es mates based on the exercise of judgment by management 
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements 
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions 
g. Qualifications in the drat audit report. 
h. The quality and acceptability of: 

i. the accounting policies and practices, including without limitation critical accounting policies and practices, all 
alternative accounting treatments within generally accepted accounting principles for policies and procedures 
related to material items that have been discussed with management, ramifications of the use of such alternative 
treatments and the treatment preferred by the external auditors; and 

ii. financial reporting disclosures and changes thereto, including a review of any material items of correspondence 
between the Company and the external auditors; 

i. The extent to which the financial statements are affected by any unusual transactions or any off-balance sheet 
arrangements, including any disclosable guarantees, indemnification agreements or interests in unconsolidated 
special purpose entities, in the year and how they are disclosed; 

 
j. the policies and process for identifying and assessing business risks and the management of these risks; 

 
k. material misstatements detected by the auditors that individually or in aggregate have not been corrected and 

management's explanations as to why they have not been adjusted; 
 

l. possible impairments of the Group's assets; 
 

m. compliance with financial reporting standards and relevant financial and governance reporting requirements; 
 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
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document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a 
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

6. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems. 
 

7. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

8. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on. 
 

9. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board. 

 
10. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

11. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in 
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

12. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism, in case the same is existing. 
 

13. Mandatory review the following information: 
i. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by management; 
iii. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
iv. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
v. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor. 

 
14. Overseeing the relationships with the external auditors as follows: 

 
i. To consider the appointment of the external auditors and provide the Board with its recommendation to the shareholders 
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors, approve the audit engagement fees and terms and 
review annually their activities, findings, conclusions and recommendations. The external auditors shall report directly to the 
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall be responsible for ensuring the resolution of any disagreements between 
management and the external auditors regarding financial reporting; 

 
ii. To discuss with the external auditors the nature and scope of the audit (including any significant ventures, investments 
or operations which are not subject to audit) and ensure co-ordination if more than one audit firm is involved; 

iii. To review and monitor the independence of the external auditors and the objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit 
process including reviewing and monitoring the external auditors' quality control procedure and steps taken by the external 
auditors to respond to changes in regulatory and other requirements. This review will include a review of the experience 
and qualifications of the senior members of the audit team, including rotational procedures; 

 
iv. To consider communications from the external auditors on audit planning and findings and on material weaknesses in 
accounting and internal control systems that came to the auditors' attention, including a review of material items of 
correspondence between the Company and the external auditors; and 

vi. To ensure that there are no restrictions on the scope of the statutory audit; 
 

14A. The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 

14B. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process; 

14C. Examination of the financial statement and the auditors' report thereon; 
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14D. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 

14E. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

14F. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 

14G. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

14H. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. 
 

14I. Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer (i.e., the whole- me Finance Director or any other person heading the 
finance function or discharging that function) a er assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the 
candidate; 

 
15. Such other functions, as may be assigned by the Board of directors from timeme to timeme or as may be stipulated under 

any law, rule or regulation including listing agreement and the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof, for the me being in force) 

 
(c) Composition, Name of Members, Chairperson, Meeting and Attendance 

 
Pursuant to the NCLT order dated January 31, 2024, approving the resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting on 
March 4, 2024, approved the reconstitution of the new Board of Directors, effective March 11, 2024. As a result, the previous board 
was dissolved, leading to the dissolution of the Audit Committee consisting of previous Board as well. 

As on March 31, 2024, the new Audit Committee of the Company comprises of Two Non-Executive (Independent) Directors & One 
Executive director having knowledge of corporate finance, accounts and company law. The Chairman of the Committee is an 
Independent Director. 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 

As specified hereinabove post the reconstitution of Board on March 11, 2024, the Audit Committee were reconstituted by the Board 
in their meeting held on March 30, 2024, accordingly, during the financial year ended March 31, 2024, no meetings of the Audit 

Committee were conducted. The composition of the re-constituted Audit Committee, as on March 31, 2024, is as follows: 
 

Name of the 
Director 

Position Category No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Date of Meeting held 
on 

Mr. Deepak Kumar 
Gupta 

Chairman 
Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
NA 

NA 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Member Executive Director NA NA 

Ms. Jyothi Thomas Member 
Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
NA 

NA 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

 
II. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
(a) Brief description of Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

 
Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation contained in Section 
17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company including committee of the board stand suspended and the 
same are vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

 
Subsequently, Bauman Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated January 
31, 2024. 
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In term of approve resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting held on March 4, 2024, reconstituted the new board and 
in place of previous Board of the company with effect from March 11, 2024. Post the reconstitution of the board the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of the Company was re-constituted by the new Board of Director in their meeting held on 30th March 2024. 

The role of the committee is to perform all such matters as prescribed under the Act and Listing Regulations about Role of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of Directors. as may be amended / modified from time to time which inter-alia includes recommendation 
to Board of Directors remuneration policy for the Company, formulation of criteria for performance evaluation of Directors, Chairman, 
Board and Committee of Directors, appointment of Director, appointment and remuneration of Managing Director and Key Managerial 
Personnel. The Committee will also deal with matters as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors. 

 
 

(b) Terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 
 

The terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee includes: 
 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend 
to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

 
2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 

 
3. Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

 
4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance 

with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal; 

5. To review performance and recommend remuneration of Executive Director’s to the board; 
 

6. To formulate ESOP plans and decide on future grants; 
 

7. To formulate terms and conditions on followings under the present Employee Stock Op on Schemes of the Company: 
i. the quantum of options to be granted under ESOP scheme(s) per employee and in aggregate; 
ii. The conditions under which options vested in employees may lapse in case of termination on of employment 

for misconduct; 
iii. The exercise period within which the employee should exercise the op on and that option would lapse on failure 

to exercise the option within the exercise period;3 
iv. The specified me period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event of termination 

or resignation of an employee; 
v. The right of an employee to exercise all the options vested in him at one me or at various points of time within 

the exercise period; 
vi. The procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the number of options and to the exercise price in 

case of rights issues, bonus issues and other corporate actions; 
vii. The grant, vest and exercise of op on in case of employees who are on long leave; and 
viii. The procedure for cashless exercise of options. 
ix. Any other ma er, which may be relevant for administration of ESOP schemes from time to time. 

8. such other functions, as may be assigned by the Board of directors from time to time or as may be stipulate under any law, 
rule or regulation including listing regulations and the companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re- 
enactment thereof, for the me being in force 
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(c) Composition, Name of Members, Chairperson, Meeting and Attendance 

Pursuant to the NCLT order dated January 31, 2024, approving the resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting on 
March 4, 2024, approved the reconstitution of the new Board of Directors, effective March 11, 2024. As a result, the previous board 
was dissolved, leading to the dissolution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee constituting of previous Board as well. 

 
Post the reconstitution of the board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company was re-constituted by the 
new Board of Director in their meeting held on 30th March 2024. 

The Members of the re-constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee are Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta (Chairman) (Independent 
Non Executive Director); Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal (Independent Non Executive Director) and Ms. Jyothi Thomas (Independent 
Non Executive Director) being the members of the Committee. 

As specified hereinabove post the reconstitution of Board on March 11, 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were 
reconstituted by the Board in their meeting held on March 30, 2024, accordingly, during the financial year ended March 31, 2024, no 
meetings of the re-constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee and previous committee were conducted. 

 

The re-constituted composition of the re-constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee, as on March 31, 2024, are as follows: 
 

Name of the Director Position Category No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Deepak Kumar Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director - 

Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal Member Non-Executive Independent Director - 

Ms. Jyothi Thomas Member Non-Executive Independent Director - 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 

(d) Performance evaluation criteria by Independent Directors 
 

The Act and Listing Regulations, 2015 has enabled an evaluation mechanism to appraise the performance of the Independent 
Directors. In terms of that, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company has laid down the criteria for the evaluation 
of the Independent Directors of the Company. The performance of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of 
Directors (excluding the Director being evaluated) and on the basis of evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue 
the term of appointment of the Independent Director. 

 
 

III. STAKEHOLDER REALTIONSHIP COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 
 

(a) Brief description of Stakeholder Relationship Committee. 
 

Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation contained 
in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company including committee of the board stand 
suspended and the same are vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

 
Subsequently, Bauman Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 
January 31, 2024. 

 
In term of approve resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting held on March 4, 2024, reconstituted the 
new board and in place of previous Board of the company with effect from March 11, 2024. Post the reconstitution of the 
board the Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Company was re-constituted by the new Board of Director in their meeting 
held on 30th March 2024. 
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The role of the Committee is to consider and resolve the grievances of security holders and perform such roles as may require under 
the Act and Listing Regulations. Continuous efforts are made to ensure that grievances are expeditiously redressed to the satisfaction 
of investors. A status report of shareholders complaints and redressed thereof is prepared and placed before Stakeholders’ 
Relationship/ Grievance Committee of Directors. 

 
(b) Terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee. 

 
The terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee includes: 

 
1. Redressal of shareholder and investor complaints including, but not limiting itself to transfer of shares and issue of 

duplicate share certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, etc.; 
2. Overseeing and reviewing all matters connected with securities of the Company; 
3. Overseeing the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company and recommends measures for overall 

improvement in the quality of Investor services; 
4. Monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, re-materialization, splitting and consolidation of shares issued by 

the Company, and 
5. Such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors and /or of the 

committees of Directors of the Company or mentioned in the Lis ng Regulations 2015. 

(c) Composition, Name of Members , Chairperson, Meeting and Attendance 

Pursuant to the NCLT order dated January 31, 2024, approving the resolution plan, the Monitoring Committee, in its meeting on 
March 4, 2024, approved the reconstitution of the new Board of Directors, effective March 11, 2024. As a result, the previous board 
was dissolved, leading to the dissolution of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee consisting of previous Board as well. 

 
Post the reconstitution of the board the Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Company was re-constituted by the new Board 
of Director in their meeting held on 30th March 2024. The Members of the re-constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee are 
Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta (Chairman) (Independent Non Executive Director) Mr. Sunil Kumar (Non Independent Executive Director) 
and Ms. Jyothi Thomas (Independent Non Executive Director). 

 
As specified hereinabove post the reconstitution of Board on March 11, 2024, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were 
reconstituted by the Board in their meeting held on March 30, 2024, accordingly, during the financial year ended March 31, 2024, no 
meetings of the re-constituted Stakeholder Relationship and previous committee were conducted. 

The composition of re-constituted of Stakeholder Relationship Committee is as follows: 
 

Name of the Director Position Category No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Deepak Kumar Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director - 

Ms. Jyothi Thomas Member Non -Executive Independent Director - 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Member Executive Director - 

 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

 
 

Status of Investor complaints received by the Company during the year under review is as follows: 

Number of complaints received and resolved during the year: 
Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the financial year 2023-24 Nil 
Number of complaints received during the year 2023-24 1 
Number of complaints redressed during the year 2023-24 1 
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Number of complaints pending at the end of the financial year 2023-24 Nil 
Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders Nil 

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: 
 

Mr. Ravi Kumar; Company Secretary is Compliance officer of the Company. 
 

Please take not that Mr. Rahul Jaiswal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, resigned, effective from March 31, 2024 and post 
his resignation the newly reconstituted board appointed Mr. Ravi Kumar, as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, effective from 
June 29, 2024. 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 
 

The following are the names and designation of Senior Management Personnel of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 and 
changes therein in since the close of previous financial year. 

 
S. No. Name Designation 

1. Mr. Dilip Shah Manager 

2. Mr. Mallappa Desai Manager 

3. Mr. Kodandarama A Manager 

4. Mr. Arvind Kumar Shukla Manager 

5. Ms. VishalakshI S Manager 

6. Mr. Vishwanatha J Manager 

7. Mr. Vivekananda Choubey Manager 

8. Mr. Jagadeesh Manager 

9. Mr. Jaganath V Manager 

10. Mr. Prateek Chhawchharia Chief Financial Officer* 

11 Mr. Jitendra Kumar Singh Manager (ceased on 10/03/024) 

12. Mr. Mallikarjun Nidagundi Manager(ceased on 30/11/2023) 

13. 
Mr. Rahul Jaiswal 

Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer (Ceased on 31/03/2024) 

14. 
Mr. Ravi Kumar 

Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer appointed w.e.f 29/06/2024** 

 
 
 
 

*Mr. Prateek Chhawchharia, Chief Financial Officer of the company, ceased with effect from close of business of 27/12/2024. 

** Mr. Ravi Kumar Appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 29/06/2024. 
 

 
Details of remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 

 
i) Executive Directors 
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No remuneration paid to Executive Directors the during the financial year 2023-24. 

ii) Non-Executive Directors 

No sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive director the during the financial year ended 31st March 2024 
 

During the period under review there is no Pecuniary Relationship or Transactions of the Non- Executive Directors with the 
company. 

 
The  criteria for making payments  to  non-executive  Directors is  available on  the Company’s  website (weblink: 
http://www.easternsilk.com/InvestorRelations/CriteriaPayments) 

During the Financial year 2023-2024, no stock options were granted to any of the directors of the Company. The Company does not 
pay any performance incentives or severance fees. 

The details of notice period for the Directors are mentioned herein below: 

Name of the Previous Directors* Notice period 

Mr. Sundeep Shah 6 Months 

Ms. Megha Shah 6 Months 

Mr. G. D. Harnathka - 

Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma - 

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah - 

Mr. Abhishek Haralalka - 

Names of New Directors*  

Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh - 

Mr. Sunil Kumar - 

Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa - 

Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta - 

Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal - 

Mrs. Jyothi Thomas - 

 
*Pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated January 31, 2024, approving the resolution plan, the Monitoring 
Committee, in its meeting on March 4, 2024, approved the re-constitution of the new Board of Directors, effective March 11, 2024. 
As a result, the previous board was dissolved w.e.f. March 11, 2024.. 
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GENERAL BODY MEETING 

i) General Meetings: 

 
The last three Annual General Meeting of the Company were held as under:- 

 
Date 

 
Time 

 
Venue 

Details of any Special Resolution 
Passed in the previous three 
annual general 
meetings 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8th September 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
11:00 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Through OAVM 

The following Special Resolutions 
were passed during the Annual 
General Meeting:- 

1. re-appointment of Sri Sundeep 
Shah (DIN.00484311) as the 
Managing Director of the Company 
for a period of five years effective 
from 1st September, 2021 to 31st 
August, 2026. 

 
2. re-appointment of Ms. Megha 
Shah (DIN. 07172597) as the 
Whole Time Director of the 
Company for a period of three years 
effective from 1st September, 2021 
to 31st August, 
2024. 

15th July 2022 11:00 A.M. Through OAVM 
No Special 
Passed 

Resolution were 

29th September,2023 3:30 P.M. Through OAVM 
No Special 
Passed 

Resolution were 

ii) Details of Resolutions passed through Postal Ballot, the person who conducted the Postal Ballot Exercise 

 and details of the voting pattern: There were no resolutions passed in the financial year 2023-24 by postal 

 ballot. 

iii) Procedure for postal ballot. 
The postal ballot was conducted in accordance with the provisions contained in Sections 108, 110 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act read together with Rule 20 & 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 (“Rules”) as amended from time to time and Listing Regulations and various circulars issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”), Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India and other applicable laws and regulations, as amended from time to time (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force). 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 
i) Quarterly results/Annual results/Notices/Other important announcements: 

 
The financial results of the Company are generally published in Financial Express (English) and Arthik Lipi (Regional) newspapers . 
These results are also posted in the Company’s website https://www.easternsilk.com/ . As per SEBI requirements, quarterly, half 
yearly and annual results of the Company are intimated to the Stock Exchanges as per the prescribed timelines after the same is 
approved by the Board. Further, the quarter-end shareholding pattern, quarterly Corporate Governance Report, and other Corporate 
Disclosures are also intimated to the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed time limit. The Company is filing the above necessary 
announcements to stock exchanges through NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS) and BSE Listing Centre. 
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ii) Annual Report: 

 
Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report, and other important information is 
Circulated to members and others entitled thereto through permitted mode(s). 

iii) Media Releases: 
 

Official news releases are given directly to the press and to National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. The media 
releases are uploaded on the website of the Company: https://www.easternsilk.com/. 

 
iv) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): 

 
The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web based complaints redress system. 

v) Website: 
 

The Company’s website is https://www.easternsilk.com/.. Quarterly and annual results as well as shareholding pattern, Corporate 
Governance, and other necessary statutory disclosures are posted on the website. 

 
GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

i) Seventy Eighth Annual General Meeting 
 

Venue : At the Registered Office of the Company, 19, RN, Mukherjee Road, Kolkata,700001 through Video Conferencing 
(VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

Date : September 25, 2025 
Time : 11:00 AM 

ii) Financial Year: 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 
 

Adoption of un-audited quarterly results and Annual Results Adoption on 
Unaudited 1st quarter results Within 45 days of the end of the quarter, except the 4th 

quarter (60 days) Unaudited 2nd quarter results 
Unaudited 3rd quarter results 
Audited 4th quarterly results and annual results 

 
iii) Dividend Payment Date: The Company has not declared any dividend during the financial year under review. 

 
iv) Book Closure: The date of book closure is from 19th September, 2025 to 25th September 2025 (both days inclusive). 

 
v) Listing on Stock Exchange: 

 
NAME OF EXCHANGE AND ADDRESS SECURITIES DEMAT ISIN NO STOCK CODE 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051 

Equity NSDL and CDSL 
INE962C01035 

EASTSILK 

vi) Listing Fess: the Company has paid the listing fees for the financial year 2023-24. 
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Details relating to Suspension of Securities and reasons thereof 

As briefed above that Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with the stipulation 
contained in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company including committee of the board 
stand suspended and the same are vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

 
Subsequently, Bauman Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated January 
31, 2024. The said approval of the Resolution plan were intimated to all the exchanges where the equity shares of the company are 
listed and traded. 

 
Post the intimation to the exchange about the approval of the Resolution Plan, certain queries were raised by the exchange pertaining 
to the treatment/payment to the public shareholder in terms of the approved Resolution Plan. The queries of the exchange pertaining 
to the treatment/payment to the public shareholder in terms of the approved Resolution Plan were addressed promptly by informing 
that the complete Pre-CIRP share Capital of the company including the equity shares held by the erstwhile promoters along with the 
public shareholding were stand extinguished. 

As the complete Pre-CIRP shareholding of the company were stand extinguished as result of implementation of the Resolution Plan. 
Accordingly, as informed by the exchange, the trading of the shares of the company were suspended until the implementation of the 
Resolution Plan. 

 
Accordingly, during the year, post approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench, trading in the security of the 
company is suspended as cautionary measures by the exchanges. 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: 

The Company’s has appointed ABS Consultant Pvt. Ltd., Room No. 99, Stephen House, 6th Floor, 4 BBD Bag (East), Kolkata – 700 
001 as Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for effecting transfer/transmission of shares etc. in physical and demat form. 

 
Share Transfer System: 

 
As mandated by SEBI, securities of the Company can be transferred / traded only in dematerialised form. Shareholders holding 
shares in physical form are advised to avail the facility of dematerialisation. During the year, the Company obtained, a certificate from 
a Company Secretary in Practice, certifying that all certificates for transfer, transmission, transposition, sub-division, consolidation, 
renewal, exchange and deletion of names were issued as required under Regulation 40(9) of Listing Regulations. The certificate was 
duly filed with the Stock Exchanges. 

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2024: 
 

No. of Shares Number of 
Share Holders 

% To Total Holders No. of 
Shares held 

% To total Holding 

Upto 500 19677 73.63 30,74,842 3.89 
501 - 1000 3210 12.01 28,05,794 3.55 
1001 – 2000 1663 6.22 26,41,482 3.35 
2001 – 3000 675 2.53 17,70,918 2.24 
3001 - 4000 309 1.16 11,09,456 1.41 
4001 – 5000 325 1.22 15,52,881 1.97 
5001 – 10000 440 1.65 3353,964 4.25 
10001 & above 423 1.58 62643283 79.34 
TOTAL 26722 100.00 78952620 100.00 
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Categories of Equity Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024 

 
Category No. Shares % age of Holding 

Promoters including NRI Promoters 40488351 51.28 
Financial Institutions, Banks, Mutual Fund Etc. 1513000 1.92 
Non Resident Indians / OCBs / FIIs 1084518 1.37 
Private Corporate Bodies 2654668 3.36 
Public Corporate Bodies 3957289 5.01 
Indian Public 28466326 36.05 
Trust 5 0.00 
IEPF Account 788463 1.00 
TOTAL 7,89,52,620 100.00 

Note: As briefed above that Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order dated June 10, 2022 and in consonance with 
the stipulation contained in Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company including 
committee of the board stand suspended and the same are vested in and exercised by Resolution Professional. 

 
Subsequently, Bauman Dekor Private Limited filed Resolution Plan which was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 
January 31, 2024. The said approval of the Resolution plan were intimated to all the exchanges where the equity shares of 
the company are listed and traded. 

Post the intimation to the exchange about the approval of the Resolution Plan, certain queries were raised by the exchange 
pertaining to the treatment/payment to the public shareholder in terms of the approved Resolution Plan. The queries of 
the exchange pertaining to the treatment/payment to the public shareholder in terms of the approved Resolution Plan 
were addressed promptly by informing that the complete Pre-CIRP share Capital of the company including the equity 
shares held by the erstwhile promoters along with the public shareholding were stand extinguished. 

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity 
 

As directed by Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Equity Shares of the Company are being traded in compulsory 
dematerialised form by all the investors. 

The Company has entered into an agreement with both depositories viz., National Security Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) enabling the investors to hold shares of the Company in electronic form. 

 
The ISIN of Eastern Silk for transactions of shares in depository mode is INE962C01035. 

 
As on 31.03.2024 the dematerialised shares were 7,78,37,161 which represents 98.39% of the total subscribed capital 

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any other Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 

The Company has not issued any GDRs, ADRs, Warrants or any other convertible instruments. 

Disclosure Of Commodity Price Risk Or Foreign Exchange Risk And Hedging Activities 
 

The Company has no material commodity price risks and accordingly has not entered into Commodity hedging. 
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Plant Location 

Unit 1 : 411, Telugarahalli Road 
Anekal, Bangalore – 562 106(The operation is yet to start) 

 
Unit 2 : #39, Kammansandra Agrahara Kasaba Hobli 

Anekal, Bangalore – 560 106 

 
Unit 3 : 11A, 2nd Cross Industrial Area 

Nanjangud, Karnataka – 571 301 (The operation is yet to start) 

 
Unit 4 (Warehouse) : Falta Special Economic Zone 
  24  Parganas (South), West Bengal  

 
Address for Correspondence 

Eastern Silk Industries Limited (CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554) 19, R. N. Mukherjee Road Kolkata – 700 001 

Phone: 033 4064 5731 Fax: 2248 – 2486 Email: investors@easternsilk.com Website: www.easternsilk.com 

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant financial year, for all 
debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving 
mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad. 

 
As the Company was under CIRP until January 31, 2024 and post that up to the closure of the financial year i.e. Up to March 31, 

2024 the plan was under implementation under the supervision of Monitory Committee as constituted in terms of the Approved 

Resolution Plan. Accordingly, the said clause is Not Applicable 

 
OTHER DISCLOSURE 

 
i. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of 

the Company at large. 
 

After the Commencement of CIRP i.e. w.e.f. June 10, 2022, in terms of the Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016, the powers of the Board are suspended upto the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide 
its order Dated January 31, 2024. 

During the CIRP i.e. upto January 31, 2024 the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by the 
Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC 2016 and powers of the Board of Directors are suspended. 
Hence, no meetings of the Directors were held after the Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022 and upto the continuation of 
CIRP till January 31, 2024. 

As briefed above that Post the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated January 
31, 2024, the monitoring committee were constituted Monitoring Committee in its meeting held on March 04, 2024 re-constituted 
the Board of the Company thereby appointing new board of directors as nominated by the Successful Resolution applicant along 
with the cessation/vacation of the erstwhile directors of the company w.e.f. March 11, 2024. 

 
Furthermore, all the related party transactions were entered on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and are in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. T 
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There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel etc. which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large or which warrants the approval of the 
shareholders. However, the details of the transactions with Related Parties are provided in the Company’s financial statements 
in accordance with the Accounting Standards. 

 
The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on Company’s website and can be accessed at 
www.easternsilk.com. 

 
ii. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) 

or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years. 
 

During the last three financial years, the Company has duly complied with all the various applicable requirements and regulations 
of the erstwhile Listing Agreement entered with the Stock Exchange and the Listing Regulations. No penalty has been imposed 
or strictures have been issued by SEBI or any other Stock Exchange or any statutory authority, on matters related to Capital 
Market, in the last three (3) years. 

iii. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel has been denied 
access to the audit committee. 

The Company has established and adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle-Blower Policy which is uploaded on the website and can 
be access through the link: http://www.easternsilk.com. Further, the company has affirmed that no personnel has been dined 
access to the Interim Resolution Professional/ Resolution Professional (as specified that w.e.f 10th June 2022 in accordance with 
Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until 
replaced by Resolution Professional till the date of resolution plan approved by NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated Jan 31, 
2024. 

 
In term of approved resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated January 31, 2024 a new Board was constituted 
by the Monitoring Committee in the current financial year i.e. on 11th March, 2024 (“Reconstituted Board” or “Board”) in place of 
the previous Board of Directors. Post the completion of the CIRP and reconsituion of Board on March 11, 2024 and also the re- 
constitution of the audit committee by the new Board of Director in their meeting held on 30th March 2024 no personnel has been 
dined access to the audit committee/board. 

 
iv. Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements. 

 
(a) Compliance with mandatory requirements. 

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Company/ Corporate Debtor”) 
was Initiated the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at Kolkata (“Adjudicating Authority”) under Section 
7 of the IBC Code vide its order dated 10th June 2022. The Powers of the Previous Board of Directors were suspended, and 
Mr. Kohli, was appointed as Resolution professional and was managing the affair of the company till the date of approval of 
Resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, vide order dated 31st January, 2024. 

However, In term of approved resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated January 31, 2024 a new Board was 
constituted by the Monitoring Committee in the current financial year i.e. on 11th March, 2024 (“Reconstituted Board” or “Board”) 
in place of the previous Board of Directors. Various committee as required under the Listing Regulations, were formed by the 
Board in their meeting held on 30th March, 2024. The Company has complied with the compliance of listing regulations related 
to corporate governance to the extent applicable. 

(b) Adoption of non-mandatory/discretionary requirements.. 
 

The status of adoption of the non-mandatory requirements as specified in sub–regulation 1 of Regulation 27 of the Listing 
Regulations are as follows: 
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Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditors of the Company have direct access to the Audit Committee. 

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Company/ Corporate Debtor”) 
was Initiated the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at Kolkata (“Adjudicating Authority”) under Section 
7 of the IBC Code vide its order dated 10th June 2022. The Powers of the Previous Board of Directors were suspended, and 
Mr. Kohli, was appointed as Resolution professional and was managing the affair of the company till the date of approval of 
Resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, vide order dated 31st January, 2024. 

 
However, In term of approved resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated January 31, 2024 a new Board was 
constituted by the Monitoring Committee in the current financial year i.e. on 11th March, 2024 (“Reconstituted Board” or “Board”) 
in place of the previous Board of Directors. 

The Audit Committee of the Company was re-constituted by the new Board of Director in their meeting held on 30th March 2024 
 
 

v. Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed. 
 

Pursuant to Regulation 16(1)(c) and 24 of the Listing Regulations, the Company had no material subsidiary as on March 31, 2024. 

vi. Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed. 
 

The Company has a Policy on Related Party Transactions and Materiality of Related Party Transactions, as amended from time 
to time in-line with various amendments in Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. The same is disclosed on the website of the 
Company via the link: http://www.easternsilk.com. 

 
vii. Disclosure of commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities. 

 
The Company has no material commodity price risks and accordingly has not entered into Commodity hedging. 

viii. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under 
Regulation 32 (7A). 

 
The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement as specified under Regulation 
32(7A). 

 
ix. Certificate from a company secretary in practice that NONE of the directors on the Board of the company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 
The Company has obtained a certificate from H Nitin & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice that NONE of the Directors on 
the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a Director of the Company 
by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The same is annexed to this report as Annexure-VI 

x. Acceptance of recommendations of the Committees of the Board. 
 

There were no such instances during the financial year 2023-24, wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations made 
by any Committees of the Board. 

 
xi. Fees paid to the Statutory Auditor for the FY 2023-2024. 

M/s B.K. Shroff & Co, Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 76th AGM held on 
15th July 2022. M/s B.K. Shroff & Co, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company have issued the limited review 
reports of the subsequent three quarters of FY 2032-24 and the Audited/Review Report on the Financial Statement/Results for 
the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2024. 
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Particulars Amount (Rs.in Lakh) 
Services as statutory auditors (including quarterly 
audits) 

5.26 

Services for other matters 0.85 
Total 6.11 

 
There is no subsidiary company/ network firm/ network entity. 

 
xii. Disclosures Under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 

 
The Company has zero tolerance towards discrimination and harassments including sexual harassment and always strives to 
create and provide a healthy environment in the workplace(s). It has in place a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment at the 
Workplace in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No complaint 
on sexual harassment was received during the Financial Year 2023-2024. The details are as under: 

 

Number of complaints filed 
during the financial year 

Number of complaints disposed 
of during the financial year 

Number of complaints pending 
as on end of the financial year 

Nil Nil Nil 

xiii. Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in 
Which directors are interested by name and amount’: 

 
Sl.No Name of Party Amount of Loan Rate of Interest Purpose 

Not Applicable 

xiv. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation and the name and 
date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries. 

Not Applicable. 
 

xv. The disclosure of the Compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V 
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations. 

 
The Company is in compliance with the above requirements, to the extent applicable, with regard to corporate governance. 

 
The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Company/ Corporate Debtor”) 
was Initiated the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at Kolkata (“Adjudicating Authority”) under Section 
7 of the IBC Code vide its order dated 10th June 2022. The Powers of the Previous Board of Directors were suspended, and 
Mr. Kohli, was appointed as Resolution professional and was managing the affair of the company till the date of approval of 
Resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, vide order dated 31st January, 2024. 

However, In term of approved resolution plan by Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata vide order dated January 31, 2024 a new Board was 
constituted by the Monitoring Committee in the current financial year i.e. on 11th March, 2024 (“Reconstituted Board” or “Board”) 
in place of the previous Board of Directors 

 
xvi. Insider Trading 

 
The Company has in place various Codes/Policies pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended. The same are disclosed on the website of the Company via the link http://www.easternsilk.com 
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xvii. WTD and CFO Certification 

The WTD and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation17(8) of the Listing 
Regulations certifying that the "Financial Statements" do not contain any materially untrue statement and these statements 
represent a true and fair view of the Company's affairs. 

 
xviii Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of conditions 
of corporate governance shall be annexed with the Directors Report. 

 
As required by Part E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, a certificate from H Nitin & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries, confirming the status of compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance, is attached to this report forming 
part of the Annual Report. 

 
xix. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account. 

The Company do not have any unclaimed suspense account. 
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Annexure III 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

(In terms of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

Overall Review, Industry structure and developments 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of manufacturing of textile and allied products currently from 
developing yarn to producing premium fashionable fabrics and related products. The factory operations in the year under 
review had been severely impacted due to the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the Company. 
The overall performance of the Company for the year under review has significantly gone down wherein “Revenue from 
Operations” of the Company registered decrease in the sales, compared to the previous year. 

The performance of the Company during the year under review showed decrease in the sales due to the non-supportive 
markets and varied changes in the customer preferences and impacted due to the initiation of Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (CIRP). The infusion of the new machineries and technology would be required to bring down the cost 
of production. The company is developing standard designs in common warps for regular products to reduce cost and it 
is hoped that these measures will bring the positive results for the future. The equilibrium in demand supply will take some 
time 

Opportunities and threats: 
 

The Company is engaged in manufacturing of textile and allied products currently from developing yarn to producing 
premium fashionable fabrics. Keeping itself updated on fashion and market trends worldwide, the company is today 
globally recognized for its deep understanding of silk. The threat is from small players who will enter the market and 
existing players creating competition in these segments due to which the margins will be under pressure in the future 

INITIATION OF CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP) AND APPROVAL OF THE 
RESOLUTION PLAN: 

 
The Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority, i.e., National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, has admitted the Company 
Petition i.e. C.P. No. (IB) No.588/KB/2020 on June 10, 2022, filed by the Financial Creditor, Export-import Bank Of India 
initiating Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (hereinafter 
referred to as “Code”) in the matter of M/s. Eastern Silk Industries Ltd. ”). The Adjudicating Authority appointed- Mr. Anil 
Agarwal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) vide its said order dated June 10, 2022. 

 
The Committee of Creditors in its first meeting of Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) held on 08.07.2022 approved the 
appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional (“RP”). Thereupon an application was filed by the CoC, before 
Hon’ble NCLT, for the appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional in the captioned matter. Subsequently, 
the Hon’ble NCLT allowed the application and appointed Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional in this matter vide its 
Order dated 29.07.2022 (copy of the same was received on 04.08.2022). 

 
Further, the CIRP is being carried out by the Resolution Professional as per the provisions of code and during CIRP the 
resolution plan as submitted by Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh through Baumann Dekor Private Limited (SRA-Successful 
Resolution Applicant), in terms of the applicable provisions of the code, was got approved by the CoC in its 11th Meeting. 

 
 

Post the approval of the resolution plan from the CoC, the Resolution Professional has filed the CoC approved Resolution 
Plan with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench on 09.03.2023 and the same was approved by the 
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 31.01.2024. 

Post the approval of the plan and for the purpose of the implementation of the plan, a monitoring committee were 
constituted in terms of the approved Resolution Plan and post constitution the monitoring committee, in terms of the 
approved Resolution Plan, had reconstituted the Board of the company thereby appointment of the new board directors 
of the company along with the removal/vacation of the existing Board of Directors of the Company. 
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Company Outlook: 

As the resolution plan of the Company is approved as aforesaid, and new management have taken over the Company, 
the Company hopes to turn around its performance in forthcoming years. 

 
 

SEGMENT WISE AND PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

The Company’s business activities falls within a single primary segment viz. Textiles. The Company does not have any 
other segment as of now. The products and dealings are closely related with textiles and its allied products. 

 
RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 
The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the Company and the policy of the Company. During the year, 
your Directors and RP made sure that all the risks that the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, 
market, liquidity, security, property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks have been identified and assessed 
and there is an adequate risk management infrastructure in place capable of addressing those risks. 

 
The Company monitors, manages and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its strategic 
long term objectives. The risk management process is reviewed periodically in order to keep it aligned with the emerging 
risks across the globe. Various programs involve risk identification, assessment and risk mitigation planning for strategic, 
operational, and financial compliance related risks across various levels of the organization. 

 
The Board is successfully, identifying the elements of risks involved along with its severity and their impact on the 
existence of the Company. 

 
 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 

The Company has established Internal Financial Control System for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the 
business including adherence to Company's Policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable Finan- 
cial Statements. 

 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the 
year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 
The Company strongly believes in the importance of Human Capital and nurturing the same. To match with the fast paced 
technological changes and also the changes in their business environment, the employees are provided regular training 
for upgradation of skills. The Company understands the importance of multi-skilling and job rotation and hence 
scientifically moves its employees in various roles thereby creating a versatile work force. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE (Forms part of Director’s 
Report) 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations 2018, the 
Company is required to provide details of significant changes (a change of 25% or more as compared to the previous 
financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations thereof. The key financial ratios are given below: 
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Key financial ratios 2023-24 2022-23 Difference (%) 
Debtors’ turnover 2.29 1.96 16.76% 
Inventory turnover 0.25 0.78 (68.43%) 
Interest coverage ratio Not Applicable, since the Company has no Borrowings in pervious year involving 

interest coverage. 
Current ratio (in times) 0.79 0.36 120.85% 
Debt equity ratio (in times) 3.68 10.15 (63.73%) 
Operating Profit Margin (in %) -58.34 (35.03) 59.51% 
Net profit margin/Ratio (in %) (65.03) (37.97) 71.27 
Return on net worth (in %) (0.78) (0.91) (14.76) 

 
The reason of the Operating Profit and Net Profit Margin/Ratio is more than 25% or more as compared to the previous 
financial year due to decrease in the sales, non-supportive markets, varied changes in the customer preferences and 
initiation of CIRP by NCLT wide order dated 10th June 2022 which effected the marketability of the Company. As the 
global textile market is inter connected, this outbreak has a global impact on the business. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Certain statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's view about the 
industry, objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward looking within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from those implied therein. Important factors that could make a 
difference include economic developments within India and countries with which the Company conducts business, 
government regulations and tax regime, availability of raw materials and prices and other incidental factors. 
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Annexure-3 

Certificate on the Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2024 

 
To 

The Members, 

Eastern Silk Industries Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by EASTERN SILK INDUSTRIES 

LIMITED (“the Company”), for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in Chapter IV of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and pursuant to Regulations 17 to 27 

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (‘LODR’), for the financial year ended 31st March 2024. We have obtained all the information and 

explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, is necessary for the purpose of this certification. 

 

 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. 

Our examination was limited to review the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company 

for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 

expression of opinion on financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the 

representations made by the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with 

the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

 
As per the audit report opinion for Eastern Silk Industries Limited for the financial year ending March 31, 

2024, contains a qualified opinion due to unresolved matters related to the approved resolution plan under 

insolvency proceedings. Key issues include adjustments of liabilities/write-offs pending compliance, 

unrecognized deposits with banks related to settlement amounts, and unconfirmed bank balances. 

Additionally, there is significant material uncertainty regarding the company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern due to financial stress and dependency on the resolution plan's implementation. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 

For H. Nitin & Associates 
 
 
 

 

 
Date: 02.12.2024 

Nitin Ghanshyam Hotchandani 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Place: Jaipur M. No.: F-9632 
UDIN: F009632F003203966 C.P. No.: 11673. 

Peer Review No: 1023/2020 
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Annexure-IV 

 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

Schedule V (D) of Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
 
 

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, I hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company have complied with the Code of Conduct of the Company for 
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 

For Eastern Silk Industries Limited 

Sd/- 
Sunil Kumar 
Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 09424480 

 
Date : 02.12.2024 
Place : Bengaluru 
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Annexure V 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2024 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended] 

 
 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Eastern silk industries limited, 
19 R N Mukherjee Rd, Kolkata 
West Bengal, India, 700001 
(CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554) 
 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Eastern Silk Industries Limited (hereinafter 
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 
thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on 31st March 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained and provided by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 
according to the provisions of:- 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
AI. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there 

under; 
BI. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
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Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the review period) 

 
(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the review period) 
(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the review period) 
(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the review period) 
(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
(h) (other regulations as applicable) and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder; 
 

It may be noted that as per the provisions of IBC Code and provisions of Regulation 15 
(2A) and (2B) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (SEBI (LODR)) as amended from time to 
time, the provisions specified in regulation 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 shall not be applicable 
during the CIRP. The conditions as specified in said regulations of the SEBI (LODR) 
shall not be useful during the CIRP and the roles and responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors and the Committees, specified in the respective regulations, shall be fulfilled 
by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, as the case may be. 

Based on the above and the examination carried out by me, I hereby report that for this 
report all stock exchange filings/submissions/publications made during the period 
commencing April 01, 2023 up to March 31, 2024, have been taken into consideration. 

 
(Note: The aforesaid list of Regulations is only illustrative. The list of such SEBI Regulations, 
as may be relevant and applicable to the listed entity for the review period, shall be added.) 

 
VI. The management of the Company has informed that there is no industry specific law 
which 
is applicable to the Company. However, laws as identified by the management and 

applicable to the Company are mentioned in "Annexure-B". 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

ii. The Listing Agreement entered into by the company with the BSE Limited/SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. to the extent applicable, as mentioned above 
subject to the following observations: 

1. The Company was under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP") under 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. On petition filed by Exim Bank of India against the 
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Company, which was admitted vide an Order dated 10th June, 2022 of the Hon'ble 
National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Kolkata, under the provisions of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("the Code"). 

 
2. Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority, i.e., National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench 

admitted the Company Petition i.e. C.P. (IB) No. 588/KB/2020 filed by the Financial 
Creditor, Export-Import Bank of India, on 10.06.2022, initiating Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (hereinafter referred 
to as “Code”) against M/s Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Corporate Debtor”) and 
appointed Mr. Anil Agarwal as the Interim Resolution Professional. Thereupon the 
member of the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) in its 1st meeting held on 08.07.2022 
has approved appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional in place of 
erstwhile IRP. The appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli was confirmed as Resolution 
Professional vide Order of Hon’ble NCLT passed on 29.07.2022. Copy of the order 
appointing Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional was received on 04.08.2022. 

 
3. Pursuant to the initiation of CIRP and Appointment of IRP/RP the powers of the Board 

of Directors of the Company stand suspended in accordance with the provisions of the 
Code and the same have been vested with and are being exercised by the IRP/RP, as the 
case may be. 

 
4. Further, the CIRP is being carried out by the Resolution Professional as per the 

provisions of code and during CIRP the resolution plan as submitted by Mr. Ajay 
Bikram Singh through Baumann Dekor Private Limited (SRA-Successful Resolution 
Applicant), in terms of the applicable provisions of the code, was got approved by the 
CoC in its 11th Meeting. 

 
5. Post the approval of the resolution plan from the CoC, the Resolution Professional has 

filed the CoC approved Resolution Plan with Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, Kolkata Bench on 09.03.2023, which was then approved by Hon’ble NCLT 
vide order dated 31.01.2024 in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency & 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Accordingly, in terms of IBC, 2016 and also as per the order 
of the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench the CIRP was come to an end upon the order of 
the Hon’ble NCLT for the approval of the Resolution Plan. 

 
6. It is pertinent to mention that, at present the plan is under implementation and as part 

of implementation of the approved Resolution Plan the board of the Company was re-
constituted w.e.f 11.03.2024. 

 
7. Meetingof the Board of Directors of the Company was held on 30 March 2024 

throughvideo conferencing & other audio visual means for Reconstitution of Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee andStake holders Relationship 
Committee as per the NCLT order dated 31st January2024 and approve by Monitoring 
Committee effective from March 11, 2024. 
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8. The Monitoring Committee of the Company, in terms of the approved Resolution Plan, 

has approved the appointment of Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh (DIN: 03096101) as 
Additional Director under the Category of Chairman (Non-Executive Director), Mr. 
Sunil Kumar (DIN:09424480) as Additional Director under the Category of Whole- 
Time Director (Executive Director), Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa (DIN 
10535137) as Additional Director under the Category of  Whole-Time Director 
(Executive Director), Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta (DIN 08578380) as Additional Director 
under the Category of independent Director (Non-Executive Director), Mr. Praveen 
Kumar Agarwal (DIN 06992675) as Additional Director under the Category of 
Independent Director (Non-Executive Director) and Mrs. Jyothi Thomas (DIN 
03502492) as Additional Director under the Category of Women Independent Director 
(Non-Executive Director) with effect from 11th March 2024. 

 
9. In addition to above, the monitoring committee also took the note that pursuant, to the 

constitution of new Board of Directors w.e.f 11.03.2024 in terms of the approved 
resolution plan by Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench, the existing Board shall stand 
dissolved, and the existing Directors, as specified in Annexure A (ii), be deemed to have 
been vacated from their directorship of the Company by virtue of order dated 
31.01.2024 passed by Hon'ble NCLT approving the resolution plan. 

 
10. Mr. Rahul Jaiswal has tendered his resignation from the position of Company 

Secretary &Compliance Officer (Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company vide his 
letter dated 19TH February2024. He has decided to move on to pursue career interest 
outside the Company. He has relieved from the services of the Company with effect   
from end of business hour on March, 31, 2024. 

 
 
 
I further report that: 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There are changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review,were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the approved Resolution Plan w.e.f 11.03.2024. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting till 10th June 2022, after that the 
application bearing C.P (IB) No. 588/KB/2020 filed by Export-Import Bank of India, the 
Financial Creditor, under section 7 of the code for initiating CIRP against Eastern Silk 
Industries Limited (the Corporate Debtor), is admitted by Hon'ble NCLT vide order dated 
10.06.2022.Upon initiation of CIRP against Corporate Debtor, its management was vested with 
Interim Resolution Professional/Resolution Professional, in terms of Section 17 of the IBC, 
2016.Accordingly, the powers of the board of directors of the corporate debtor were suspended 
from CIRP initiation order dated 10.06.2022 passed by Hon'ble NCLT. 
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During the review period, the Resolution Plan got approved and management has been re- 
constituted as mentioned above by conducting Board Meeting dated 30.03.2024 and passed 
board resolution for Reconstitution of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stake holders Relationship Committee as per the NCLT order dated 31st 
January 2024 and approved by Monitoring Committee effective from March 11, 2024. 
 
 
I further report that there has been delay in transferring amounts which are required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company due to closure of 
Dividend Account for the Year 2009 & 2010 by the HDFC Bank Ltd. during the F.Y. 2016- 17 
resulting in non-transfer of the unclaimed amount for the year 2009 & 2010 to the Investors 
Education & Provident Fund.At the instance of Indian Bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank), 
HDFC Bank Ltd. closed all the bank accounts of the Company during the F.Y. 2016- 17 which 
included closure of the Dividend Account for the year 2009 and 2010 also. The Company was 
pursuing the matter with The Reserve Bank of India & HDFC Bank Ltd to reinstate the 
Dividend Accounts in order to facilitate the Company to deposit the Unclaimed Dividend 
amount for the year 2009 and 2010with Investor Education and Protection Fund to comply with 
the required provision of the Companies Act, 2013.The Company has received the Manager's 
Cheque for the balances held in the said account for the year 2009 and 2010 are still shown 
under Bank Balances (Others) reported under Note No. 8.The Company has been pursuing the 
matter with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for depositing the said Manager's Cheque to the 
Investor Education and Provident Fund. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 
*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as "Annexure- A" 
and forms an integral part of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date: 30. 05. 2024 
Place: Jaipur 

    
   

 
       
For H Nitin & Associates Company 
Secretaries 
 
      CS Nitin Hotchandani 

 FCS No.: F- 9632 COP No.: 
11673 PR No.-1023/2020 
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“ANNEXURE A” 

 
 
 
 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Eastern silk industries limited, 
19 R N Mukherjee Rd, Kolkata 
West Bengal, India, 700001 
(CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554) 
 

 
Our report of even date is to be read with the following clarification and explanation: 
 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We 
believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

accounts of the Company. 
 
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc. 
 
5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
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“ANNEXURE B” 

 
 
List of applicable laws other than the laws listed above: 

1. Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
2. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 
3. Income Tax Act, 1961 
4. Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (GST) 
5. Factories Act, 1948 
6. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 
7. Industrial Relations Act 1962 
8. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 
9. The Customs Act, 1962 
10. The Central Excise Act, 1944 
11. Shops & Establishment Act, 1963 
12. Minimum Wages Act, 1948 
13. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
14. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
15. Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
16. Compulsory Notification of Vacancies Act, 1959 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Date: 30. 05. 2024 
Place: Jaipur 

                                                   

 

 

 

 

 

                              For H Nitin & Associates  

    Company Secretaries
 
 
CS Nitin Hotchandani 

 FCS No.: F- 9632  
 COP No.:     11673  
 PR No.-1023/2020 
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Annexure-VI 

 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 

of EASTERN SILK INDUSTRIES LIMITED having CIN L17226WB1946PLC013554 and having registered office 

at 19 R N MUKHERJEE RD, KOLKATA, West Bengal, India, 700001 (hereinafter referred to as the Company'), 

produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 

34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
In my/our opinion and to the best of my/our information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to me / us by the Company & its officers, I/We hereby certify that NONE of the 

Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 
Thereby. certify that NONE of the-Directors-on-the-Beard not debarred or disqualified during the period 

11/03/2024 to 31/03/2024. 

S.No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company 

1. Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh 03096101 11/03/2024 

2. Mr. Sunil Kumar 09424480 11/03/2024 

3. Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri 

Reddappa 

10535137 11/03/2024 

4. Mr. Deepak Kumar Gupta 08578380 11/03/2024 

5. Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal 06992675 11/03/2024 

6. Mrs. Jyothi Thomas 03502492 11/03/2024 

 
Further the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP") was initiated, on a petition filed by Export- 

import Bank of India, against Eastern Silk Industries Limited ("Company/Corporate Debtor"), which was 

admitted vide an Order dated June 10, 2022 ("Insolvency Commencement Date") of the Hon'ble National 

Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT), Kolkata Bench, under the provisions of section 7 of the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code. 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder ('the Code"). The Hon'ble 

NCLT vide its order no. CP (IB) No 588/KB/2020 dated June 10, 2022 allowed initiation of CIRP of the 

Company and Mr. Anil Agarwal. IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IPP00270/2017-2018/10514 was 

appointed as an Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) for the Company. 

 
The members of the Committee of Creditors ("COC") in its first meeting held on 08.07.2022 has approved the 

appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional in place of erstwhile IRP, The appointment of Mr. 

Anil Kohli was confirmed as Resolution Professional vide order of Hon'ble NCLT passed on July 29, 2022 the 

National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide order dated 10th June 2022 has initiated Corporate Insolvency 

Resolution Process under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code on 2016 of the Company, Further the 
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above mentioned NCLT's Order and pursuant to section 17 of IBC, the power of Board of Directors of the 

Company stood suspended and such powers were vested with interim resolution/ Resolution Professional. 

 

 
Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company was held on 30th March 2024 through video conferencing 

& other audio visual means for Reconstitution of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and Stake holders Relationship Committee as per the NCLT order dated 31st January 2024 and approve by 

Monitoring Committee effective from March 11, 2024. 

 
The Monitoring Committee of the Company, in terms of the approved Resolution Plan, has approved the 

appointment of Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh (DIN: 03096101) as Additional Director under the Category of 

Chairman (Non-Executive Director), Mr. Sunil Kumar (DIN:09424480) as Additional Director under the 

Category of Whole-Time Director (Executive Director), Mr. Ramesh Chandragiri Reddappa (DIN 10535137) 

as Additional Director under the Category of Whole-Time Director (Executive Director), Mr. Deepak Kumar 

Gupta (DIN 08578380) as Additional Director under the Category of Independent Director (Non-Executive 

Director), Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal (DIN 06992675) as Additional Director under the Category of 

Independent Director (Non-Executive Director) and Mrs. Jyothi Thomas (DIN 03502492) as Additional 

Director under the Category of Women Independent Director (Non-Executive Director) with effect from 11th 

March 2024. 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 

of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 

verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For H. Nitin & Associates 
 
 
 

 

 
Date: 02.12.2024 

Nitin Ghanshyam Hotchandani 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Place: Jaipur M. No.: F-9632 
UDIN: F009632F003204483 C.P. No.: 11673. 

Peer Review No: 1023/2020 
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